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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

A MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd (the “Company”) has experienced another
successful year. It gives me great pleasure in reporting the results and achievements of the Company for
the challenging year 2020, from which we gain financial and business strength to invest in future growth.

In implementing our vision and strategy, we value and thank the support of our Holding Company Nest
Investments. (Holdings) Ltd, our Shareholders, Board members, organization leaders, employees and
associates as they serve our customers and shareholders. Our Vision ‘To lead through innovation and service
excellence’ remains challenging and motivating; it requires tireless efforts of self-improvement and vigilant
administration of the Company’s resources.

Economy

For the year 2020 a negative growth of 5.8% in GDP has been recorded for the Cyprus economy, which
is attributed to the health crisis caused by the Covid-19 pandemic.

The expectations for 2021 are that the Cyprus economy will bounce back from the pandemic, with a
growth of 4.5% in GDP, while there are still some downside risks to the growth projections that are
associated with the following:
» The negative impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the economy
> The high levels of non- performing loans which pose major risks to the stability of the
banking system and to the outlook of the economy.
» Delays in the implementation of structural reforms agreed in the economic adjustment
program (e.g. public administration and e-government).
Cyprus Insurance Premiums remain around 4% of GDP, whilst in developed European countries they are
twice as much. As Cyprus is moving closer to Europe these numbers show the potential for growth. The
potential will be enhanced if a solution to the Cyprus problem is achieved and /or oil and gas production
materialises.

Financial results

The Company’s net earned premiums rose to €28.902.279 compared to-€28.166.567 in 2019, representing
an increase-of 3% from last year. The net profit for the year was €3.262.969, which is significantly higher
than last year’s profit of €2.368.735. The reasons for the increase in the net profit are mainly higher net
earned premiums and lower net claims ratio.

Solvency IE

The time and effort invested by the Company to prepare for Solvency I1 (SII), is paying off as the skills,
tools and knowledge built have not only addressed the requirements, but have allowed us to stay on top
of all challenges that arose under the new SII environment. The governance system of the Company has
been SII compliant since the early stages of the Company. More technical requirements such as Pillar I
and Pillar II exercises have been duly addressed and the ORSA exercise is a very valuable tool to the
Board. The Solvency Coverage Ratio (SCR) of the Company is at the level set by the Board to reflect the
Company’s desire for growth and risk appetite with respect to its investment strategy. We project future
solvency positions and define our strategies for the future taking into consideration these projections and
our overall plans for growth and profitability. We have initiated our investments reallocation strategy in
the latter part of 2016 and through the functioning of our Investment Committee, we plan to remain on
top of matters related to investments, their risk profile and ensuing concentrations in light of our well
defined risk appetite concerning the target SCR under normal as well as stress scenarios.

Board restructure

The Company Chairman Frixos Savvides and its director Stavros Stavrou were replaced in 2020 by the
undersigned assuming the post of Chairman and the appointment of two new directors, namely Marios
Hadjiyiannakis and Andreas Constantinides who are chairing the Investment and Audit Committees
respectively.




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
A MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN (continued)

We would like to thank both Frixos and Stavros for their enormous contribution to the Company, their
wealth of knowledge and experience provided the Company with the knowledge and skills which geared
and promoted its success during their time in office.

Welcoming the new directors we are sure that their respective knowledge and experience will be utilized
in the best manner and we thank them for joining the Company.

Corporate Governance

Since the initiation of our operations, the Company applies strong governance and transparent reporting
through established Board Committees, which have oversight responsibility over the internal functions of
Compliance, Risk, Audit and Actuarial. Corporate Governance practices have been enriched and
enhanced through risk based internal audits that cover all areas of operations and Company’s locations.
The implementation of the corporate governance and practices of risk assessment has contributed
significantly to the Company’s growth and success.

Future Outloock

We are hopeful that our Company is going to be the best alternative option for both Retail and Corporate
clients. We are part of an international group engaged in Insurance, Reinsurance, Broking, Real Estate,
Banking and other licensed services. We enjoy the support of our parent and other Group Companies but
most importantly, over the past years we have built the financial strength to be able to continue our
successful course and to look at the years ahead with confidence ready and able to seize opportunities for
growth either domestically or through Freedom Of Service, that might arise.

The Board and the Executive team have been following an action plan to safeguard the Company from
anticipated indirect threats, such as fraudulent claims and increased credit risk, especially in light of the
new collections Directive. At the same time due to the Company’s risk processes which have been adopted
from inception, we are organized and ready to deal effectively with all possible scenarios. Furthermore,

our high solvency ratio allows the Company to continue pursuing its ambitious plans in expanding the
business.

Innovations are fueling our growth and help us to appeal to the next generation of customer retaining our
existing loyal customers with the security and the experience we provide to them. In order to support this
strategy, the Company engaged in a five-year project, to install a new "tailor made”, insurance production
system that is geared to facilitate all future upgrades in service and value offering to its Agents and
Customers. We were happy to see the project completed and put into operation early January 2021.

We strongly believe that the Company is poised for growth and future success. Building on its strong
performance of 2020, the Company remains focused towards increasing its market share and creating a
balanced portfolio that will allow for even better underwriting results and higher profitability.

We are ready to manage both the opportunities and the challenges ahead. A strong and tangible example
is the Covid-19 crisis management. The Company from the outset took, all necessary protective measures
and assured optimum business continuity under the circumstances. Its actuaries were instructed to prepare
scenario analysis for the assets and the business. Through this process it became clear that the Company
stands well on its feet, during this unprecedented pandemic. Our

efforts were not restricted only to the protection of the business but catered for its people; staff, agents
and clienfS. ThexCompany is committed to build a brighter future for us all,

[ warnily thank my fellow board members, the executive team, the staff and the Company’s brokers,
clients and agsdciates, for the excellent performance throughout this year.

(3

Chri$ Georghiades
/O_éa;rman




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
A MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

1 am pleased to report that the year of 2020 was another year of achievement for Trust International
Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd, despite the challenges faced. We started the year as a strong and
stable company and managed to grow by 3% our gross written premium. Our financial results,
summarized in this report were satisfactory, but what’s more, we earned recognition for our
achievements and market penetration. The Covid-19 crisis did hinder the Company’s growing pace
but in no way did it hinder its track.

Our Company

Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Ltd, established in 1990, is a member of the Nest
Investments (Holdings) Ltd Group (the Nest Group). Since carrying out its direct insurance
operations from August 2009 under a new management and structure, the Company has been the
fastest-growing Insurance entity based in Cyprus.

The Company has marked a growth of 3% comparing to 2019, exceeding its budget plans. Qur
Company offers a wide range of insurance products to cover personal lines, commercial and
industrial risks.

During 2020 the Company enhanced its corporate governance processes by upgrading its procedure
manuals, automating its operating systems and upgrading its ERM procedures. Throughout the year
we have also continued investing in technology; we have enhanced the Business Intelligence system
for transparency, reliability and timely decision-making. Furthermore, we have enhanced our
procedures for the collection of premiums in light of the collections directive implemented on I*
January 2018. During the year the Company continued the preparations for implementing a new
Insurance system, which was placed in force in the beginning of 2021. This five year project is
coming to a successful completion and is expected to multiply the abilities of the Company and our
Agents to work on-line while at the same time to save on expenses. Furthermore, the Company has
commenced the preparation for implementation of IFRS17 “Insurance Contracts” in cooperation
with the Group, which will require a significant investment in systems and human resources.

Solvency I1

Solvency IT is the updated set of regulatory requirements for insurance companies which operate in
the European Union, and establishes a revised set of market consistent EU-wide capital requirements
and risk management standards effective from 1 January 2016. The Company has followed an action
plan, in cooperation with the Group Actuarial and Risk Department, in order to be fully compliant
with Solvency II. The Company maintains a robust solvency ratio under the new regime, both under
normal conditions and under stress test scenarios, which enables the Company to attract quality
business. During the year 2019, new share capital of more than €7 million was injected by the
Shareholder to the Company in the form of investment property, in order to increase its solvency
ratio to such a size that is appealing for a leader in the Cyprus insurance market.

Our Competitive Advantage

Through the support of our shareholders and the excellent results of our Company, we have built our
financial strength that allows us to plan our future with confidence, aiming at higher achievements.
We aim to continue improving our already high quality products and services and reinforce our
position as the "insurer of choice", through the implementation of our key strategies:

» Financial Stability: Work within the prevalent regulatory financial framework to actively
manage assets and control liabilities, in order to maintain a Solvency ratio that will render the
Company the “Insurer of choice”.
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A MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (continued)

» Leadership position: Maintain our leading position of “Top 4” in the Cyprus Insurance market

in terms of quality written business whilst maintaining a Net Combined Ratio better than the
industry.

» Stable business model: Significantly enhance the quality of our business portfolio in terms of
higher percentage of “Corporate” and “Direct” business, writing business with carefully selected
Clients and Brokers, shift to a more balanced portfolio.

» Innovation and market segmentation: Develop a new range of specialized products and
services to address specific market segments and co-exist alongside the traditional insurance
products and services. Through innovation to differentiate and be better than the competition.

» Evaluate new target market: Seek to geographical expansion outside the confines of the
Republic of Cyprus based on well-researched regions and justified feasibility studies.

» Human Resources: Achieve e employee engagement for operatidnal._,t}xcellence, work force
effectiveness, develop future leaders and capitalize on their ability to-create professional
relations.

» Technology: Through technology upgrades of the production system, peripherals and mobile
applications, to establish the concept of "insurance made easy"; for accurate, efficient and low
administration cost operational excellence. Convert all work flows to be made on-line in order
to create a paperless office, automated processes, fast and easy service.

» Value proposition: Redefine the "value proposition” to boost cross-selling and attract-sales,
rather than push-sales through the traditional distribution methods.

Building on our Strengths

The Company for the past nine years has managed to establish itself as an Insurance Leader; a
Company that is:

# Financially sound and strong with the backing of an even stronger and well-established
Group, Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd, with Insurance know-how and expertise.

» Dynamic and with high professional standards.

» Always providing excellent service, aiming to meet customers’ expectations and is focusing
on speedy settlement of claims.

» Sophisticated processes to support our vision and mission.

Although the new decade came with a universal challenge, Trust proved to be not only prepared to
develop an effective plan, but quick to act in order to ensure safety and business continuity.

The Covid-19 crisis allowed the Company to utilize all its technological capacity to keep, and raise
its modus operandi and service levels.

Early on, with the first confirmed reported cases on the island, and before it became governmental
requirement, the Company put in place a series of preventive and protective measures for all staff,
agents and clients, safeguarding the business. A work from home plan was mapped and carried out,
with the help of advance technology systems made available for all. At the same time agents and
clients were offered tools to continue interacting with the Company remotely (online payment, online
claim form submission, online quotation request, online alteration request, online direct support). As
for those who inevitably had to be physically present at our premises, an ad hoc mechanism was put
in place to ensure that no one was, or putting anyone at risk. Coming out of the crisis, we feel
empowered, and stronger than ever as we managed not to keep afloat, but to ameliorate our
procedures and systems in a way from which we can, and will benefit from in the future.




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
A MESSAGE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (continued)

The Investors in People Platinum recognition reconfirmation received during the year serves as
evidence of what was achieved during the year.

The above give us the confidence to continue pursuing our ambitious goals for 2021 and for the
subsequent years.

In closing, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our Directors for their devotion and
commitment to the success of the Company, their constant contribution and availability to
immediately deal with all issues arising; to our parent company Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd that
have greatly assisted the Company to build its strategies together with systems and practices, that
now, at this time of need, differentiates our Company from the competition; to all staff members for
their commitment and passion towards achieving our goals and finally to our clients and brokers for
their loyalty. Based on these synergies, our strong foundation and goals as well as our willingness to
go above and beyond, we will continue our path towards a greater future.

N o
Chriastos Christodotiqu
Chief Executive Officer




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Board of Directors presents its report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal activities and nature of operations of the Company

Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited (the “Company”, “Trust™} is a limited
liability company incorporated in Cyprus on 5 December 1990 in accordance with the provisions of
the Cyprus Companies Law Cap.113. The principal activities of the Company, which are unchanged
from last year, are carrying out insurance/ reinsurance business.

Review of developments, position and performance of the Company’s business

The Company’s gross written premium was €36.522.155 in 2020 compared to €35.604.143 in 2019
(note 3).

Gross incurred claims decreased from €18.979.686 in 2019 to €16.426.245 in 2020 whereas Net
incurred claims decreased from €16.936.170 in 2019 to €14.695.634 in 2020. The Gross Loss Ratio
(Gross Incurred Claims to Gross Earned Premium) decreased to 46% in 2020 comparing to 55% in
2019 and the Net Loss Ratio (Net [ncurred Claims to Net Earned Premium) decreased to 51% in
2020 comparing to 60% in 2019,

The net profit for the year is €3.262.969 as compared to €2.368.735 for 2019. The main reason for
the increase in the profit is the decrease in net claims ratio, as well as the increase in net earned
premium. The return on equity is 10% for 2020 and 8% for 2019.

The Company’s net technical reserves stand at €35.913.117 as at 31 December 2020 as compared to
€33.052.178 as at 31 December 2019. Included in the reserves is a Claims handling expense reserve
0f €597.229 (2019: €578.117) and Net IBNR/IBNER reserves of €3.655.203 (2019: €3.459.469).

The Bank and Cash balances increased significantly from €2.446.230 as at 31 December 2019 to
€5.877.127 as at 31 December 2020, and the investments increased from €19.415.896 to
€20.401.383.

Sharcholders’ equity amounts to €33.402.135 as at 31 December 2020 comparing to €31.266.868 as
at 31 December 2019. The increase which is shown in the Statement of changes in equity, represents
the net profit for the year and the revaluation gains/ losses.

According to the latest official statistics of the Insurance Association of Cyprus, the Company retains
a share of 9,63% of the Cypriot general insurance market sector (2019: 9.22%) and ranked third
between the general business insurance companies excluding medical premiums written by life
insurance companies.

The financial position, development and performance of the Company as presented in these financial
statements are considered satisfactory.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company are disclosed in Notes 1, 2, 22 and 23 of
the financial statements.

The Cyprus economy has been adversely affected by the outbreak of the new coronavirus (Covid-
19). On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the outbreak of Covid-19 a global
pandemic recognising its rapid spread across the globe. In response to the pandemic, the government
of the Republic of Cyprus and various governments globally implemented and continue to implement
numerous measures atiempting to contain and delay the spreading and impact of COVID-19, such as
requiring self-isolation by those potentially affected, implementing social distancing measures and
mass quarantines, controlling or closing borders and imposing limitations on business activity,
including closure of non-essential businesses.




Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
MANAGEMENT REPORT (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

These measures have, among other things, severely restricted economic activity both in Cyprus and
globally and they have negatively impacted, and could continue to negatively impact, businesses,
market participants as well as the Cyprus and global economies as they persist for an unknown period
of time.

As a result of the measures imposed by the government, the Company was not forced to close,
because Insurance companies are considered essential businesses.

The Management of the Company has taken and continues to take measures to safeguard the health
and safety of its staff and agents as well as its clients and -associates, in order to ensure minimum
disruption and sustainability of the Company’s operations. The Company implemented almost
immediately a “hybrid modus operandi”. Within a few days the Company was able to operate online
ensuring to continue providing excellent service to its customers and agents, safeguarding the public
health. Key functions were either transferred online, or provided by staff and/or agents working
remotely, maintaining the same level of service. 50% of employees were working from home,
production, claims and collections were serviced electronically via enhancements to production
systems and agent’s portal. Policies, claims and collections were electronically processed and
distributed to the agents and clients via emails. Meetings and trainings were performed using online
platforms. Furthermore, the Company imposed strict iules of hygiene {o protect the health and safety
of its staff and associates.

The unprecedented economic conditions have affected the ability of the Company to collect its
premiums receivable and have also affected the fair value of its investments.

The Company’s management has assessed the impairment of premiums receivable, and has increased
the provision for doubtful debts by €426.254 as disclosed in Note 23. The Company’s management
has assessed the potential impact on valuation of property and investment properties carried at fair
value, and has recognised a fair value decrease of €559.650 in relation to the investment properties
as disclosed in Note 10. The Company’s management has also recognised fair value decreases of
€242.889 in available for sale investments and €46.688 in investments at fair value through profit or loss
as disclosed in Note 11.

The Company’s management has assessed the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern.
The satisfactory results of the Company for the year as well as the studies carried out by the
Company’s Actuaries, do not raise any material uncertainty on the ability of the Company to continue
as a going concern.

The future effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and of the above measures on the Cyprus economy,
and consequently on the future financial performance, cash flows and financial position of the
Company, are difficult to predict and management’s current expectations and estimates could differ
from actual results. The Company’s management believes that it is taking all the necessary measures
to maintain the viability of the Company and the development of its business in the current economic
environment.

Insurance Risk

The risk of an insurance policy occurs from the uncertainty of the amount and time of presentation
of the claim. Therefore the level of risk is determined by the frequency of such claims, by the severity
and their evolution from one period to the next.

For the general insurance industry, the major risks are the resuits of major catastrophic events such
as natural disasters. These risks vary depending on location, type and nature. The variability of risks
is mitigated by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts as a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by changes in any subset of the portfolio. The
exposure of the Company to insurance risks is also reduced by the following measures:

10
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MANAGEMENT REPORT (continued)

Insurance Risk (continued)

e Introduction of strict underwriting policies

o  Strict review of all claims that occur

e Immediate assessment and processing of claims to minimise the possibility of negative
development in the long run, and

e  Useof effective reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic events.

An increase in the net estimated outstanding claims position and IBNR provision of 1% (2019: 1%)
would decrease the profit before tax by €225.227 (2019: €205.908).

Use of financial instruments by the Company

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The Company's risk management programme is described in the Board of Directors section below.
Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising mainly from its investments and
reinsurance treaties with respect to the US dollar. The currency of the reinsurance treaties has
changed from US Dollar to Euro from 1 July 2018. As at 31 December 2020 an amount of €1.577.301,
which is included in the Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities, relates to the reinsurers’ share
of outstanding claims for the old treaties in US Dollar (2019: €1.636.593). As at.31 December 2020, the
Company’s exposure to US Dollar from financial assets and liabilities amounted to €2.618.676
(2019: €2.019.845). The Company is not applying any hedge accounting for foreign exchange risk.
Management monitors the exchange rate fluctuations on a continuous basis and acts accordingly.

Price risk

The Company is exposed to equity securities and debt instruments price risk because of investments
held by‘the Company and classified on the balance sheet either as available-for-sale or at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its price
risk arising from investments in equity securities and debt instruments, the Company diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Company's
Board of Directors.

The Company's investments as at 31 December 2020 include equity securities which are publicly
traded in European Stock Exchanges amounting to €2.006.915 (2019: €1.099.496) and listed bonds
amounting to €18.394.468 (2019: €18.316.400). The Company does not apply any hedge accounting
for price risk.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Company's interest rate risk arises from interest-bearing assets. Interest-bearing assets at variable
rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s assets which bore variable interest rates amounted to
€5.824.746 (2019: €1.821.980). The Company's management monitors the interest rate fluctuations

on a continuous basis and acts accordingly. The Company does not apply hedge accounting for cash
flow interest rate risk.

11
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Credit risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, debt instruments, reinsurers’
assets as well as credit exposures to agents and clients, including outstanding receivables and
commitied transactions,

For debt instruments the credit ratings of the issuers are reviewed and the limits set by the Board of
Directors are observed. Reinsurers are selected according to minimum credit ratings and banks of a
minimum rating are also selected, if an independent rating is available. For agents and clients where
an independent rating is not available, management assesses the credit quality of the agent or client,
taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual credit terms
are set based on the credit quality of the customer. The management has provided for expected losses
from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Company’s credit risk arises from premiums receivable amounting to €5.911.555 (2019:
€5.778.105), receivables from related parties amounting to €1.566.299 (2019: €1.364.538),
reinsurers assets amounting to €6.072.994 (2019: €5.853.291), bank balances amounting to
€5.824.746 (2019: €2.157.182) and debt securities amounting to €18.394.468 (2019: €18.316.400).
As of 31 December 2020, premiums receivable of €2.107.212 (2019: €1.616.683) were impaired and
provided for. The amount of the provision was €1.732.442 as of 31 December 2020 (2019:
-€1.306.188). The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to agents and corporate clients,
which are in an unexpectedly difficult economic situation. It was assessed that a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

Liquidity risk

Management monitors the current liquidity position of the Company based on expected cash flows
and expected revenue receipts. On a long-term basis, liquidity risk is defined based on the expected
future cash flows at the time of entering into new credit facilities or leases and based on budgeted
forecasts. Management believes that it is successful in managing the Company’s liquidity risk.

Future developments of the Company

The Board of Directors does not expect any significant changes or developments in the operations,
financial position and performance of the Company in the foreseeable future.

Results
The Company's results for the year are set out on pages 22 and 23.

Dividends

During the year the Company paid a final dividend for 2019 of €1.000.000 to its sole Shareholder
Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd (2019: final dividend for 2018 €900.000). The Company did not
pay an interim dividend for 2020, in light of the recommendations of EIOPA and the Insurance
Companies Control Service to refrain froim payment of dividends as a result of the Covid-19 measures.
(2019: interim dividend for 2019 €1.354.776). Having considered the position and performance of
the Compary, the Board of Directors proposes the payment of a final dividend for 2020 during 2021.

Share capital

On 16 December 2019 a resolution was passed for the issue and allotment of €7.107.000 divided into
7.107.000 shares of €1 each to the sole Shareholder Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd.

12
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Board of Directors

The members of the Board of Directors at 31 December 2020 and at the date of this report are shown
in the table below. Mr. Andreas Constantinides and Mr. Marios Hadjiyiannakis were appointed on 7
Qctober 2020. Mr. Frixos Savvides and M. Stavros Stavrou resigned on 30 July 2020. The remaining
directors were members of the Board throughout the year 2020. There were no significant changes
in the assignment of responsibilities and remuneration of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors consists of three distinet groups namely Shareholder Representatives,
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The Board’s role is to set the overall strategic
direction, approve business plans and monitor the overall performance of the business against the
approved plans, within a compliant framework of corporate governance and ethical principles.

During 2020 the Board of Directors held nine meetings, the Nomination Remuneration and Corporate

Governance Committee (NR&CG) held three meetings, the Audit Committee (AC) held three
meetings and the Risk Committee (RC) held three meetings.

Board Composition

Name Position Comniittee Role
Chris Georghiades Chairman NR&CG Committee - Chairman
Investment Committee - Member
Kamel Abunahl Deputy Chairman NR&CG Commitiee ~ Member
Mehran Eftekhar Group Corporate Services | NR&CG Committee — Member
Diirector, Director Investment Committee - Member
Kyriakos Kazamias Director Risk Committee - Chairman

Audit Committee - Member

Christos Chief Executive Officer, Director | Investment Committee - Member
Christodoulou

Andreas Director Audit Committee - Chairman
Constantinides Risk Committee - Member
Marios Director Investment Committee - Chairman
Hadjiyiannakis Audit Committee - Member

Risk Comimittee - Member

Chris Georghiades — Chairman

Mr. Chris Georghiades has an extensive experience of corporate and commercial legal matters,
particularly in relation to business acquisitions and corporate reorganizations, joint ventures,
Shareholder disputes, insolvency, banking and taxation. He also advises on construction law, sports
law, aviation law and administrative law. He is an LLB graduate of Athens University and an LLM
graduate of King’s College of London.

Kamel Abunahl — Deputy Chairman

Mr. Kamel Abu Nahl’s work experience include Trust International Insurance Co. as an Assistant
Underwriter, Brockbank (Lloyds) Syndicate (London) as an Underwriter, Property Underwriter for
Trust International Insurance Co. He is currently the Chairman for Trust International Insurance &
Reinsurance Company B.S.C (C) Trust Re as well as the Chairman and CEQ of Trust Holdings Ltd.

Mehran Eftekhar — Group Corporate Services Director, Director

Mr. Mehran Eftekhar is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales (ICAEW) as well as a2 Chartered Director and Fellow member with the UK Institute of
Directors. He has over 40 years of experience in the private sector of finance and corporate services.
He serves as a non-executive Director of a number of Group companies. He is also Group Corporate
Services Director in the parent company.

13
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Board of Directors (continued)

Kyriakos Kazamias — Director

Mr. Kyriakos Kazamias is an MSc¢ graduate of Berlin Hochschule fur Okomomie (High School of
Economiics). He served as Chief Executive Officer of Limassol Cooperative Savings. For ten years
he has been a member of the Parliamentary Committee of Finance and Budget. During the period
2004-2010 he was Member of the European Court of Auditors in Luxembourg. His contribution to
the Cypriot economy has played an important role since he was the Minister of Finance.

Christos Christodoulou — Chief Executive Officer, Director

Mr. Christos Christodoulou holds an HND, BSc and an MSc in Engmeermg He is a Chartered
Director with the UK Institute of Directors with an extensive experience in Corporate Governance
and Management. He has been serving the Insurance Industry for more than twenty-five years, both
in General Business and Life Operations, from various Managerial positions. Under his leadership,
since 2009, the Company has successfully penetrated the Cyprus Insurance Industry and established
itself as a leading Insurer on the island. The adopted strategies, foeused on innovation and customer
experience, proved to serve the Company-as they were pivotal in creating a large portfolio of loyal
customers and agents which led to profitable operations. In 2016 he was awarded with the annual IN
Business Awards as "The Manager of the Year". Under his management, Trust Insurance is awarded
the "Platinum Employer of the Year" for 2017 by the Investors in People of the London International
Office, which is a special recognition as Trust is the first Company to receive the Platinum Award in
Cyprus and the first to be internationally recognized for its practices. The same recognition was also
awarded in 2020. He is a member of the Board of Directors of the Cyprus Insurance Association, the
Cyprus Hire and Rejected Risks Pool as well as World Trade Center (Cyprus) Ltd.

Andreas Constantinides — Director

Mr. Andreas Constantinides holds a BA Honors degree in Economics and is a Fellow of The [nstitute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. During his career as Assurance Partner at PwC
Cyprus, he has managed a large portfolio of audit clients both publicly listed and major private
organisations and has extensive experience in audits of international entities and consolidations. He
had significant involvement in European and Eastern European markets. Apart from being co-
founder of Avantium Corporate Services Ltd, he serves as Board member of a number of
Organizations and Companies.

Marios Hadjiyiannakis — Director

Mr. Marios Hadjiyiannakis is the Chief Executive Officer of Renaissance Securities (Cyprus)
Limited, the Cyprus based subsidiary of the investment bank Renaissance Capital. Prior to joining
Renaissance Capital, he was the founding partner of Egnatia Financial Services (Cyprus) Ltd, one of
the three leading domestic investment firmsin Cyprus. During the period 2016-2018, he worked with
Playtech Plc, listed on the London Stock Exchange, as the CEO of Playtech’s regulated investment
services subsidiaries. He holds a BA (Hons) in Industrial Economics and Accounting from the
University of Nottingham. He is a Chartered Accountant with extensive experience at Coopers &
Lybrand UK. He has been involved at national level in the roll out of initially the investment services
directive and subsequently MiFID I and MiFID II into domestic national legislation in Cyprus. He is
a Member of the Governance Committee of the National Investor Compensation Fund for clients of
the Cyprus investment firms, Chairman of CySEC regulated Trade Capital Markets Limited and a
non-executive Director of Hellas Sat Limited.

Board Committees

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to committees. Any such committee must keep the Board
apprised on a timely basis of actions and determinations.

The committees that have been successfully formed by the Board of Directors, aim to provide support
and effective control of the Company, and are as follows:
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
MANAGEMENT REPORT (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

Audit Committee:

« Andreas Constantinides — Chairman
* Kyriakos Kazamias
» Marios Hadjiyiannakis

Secretary: Chrysostomos Daniil

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the financial
reporting process, the system of internal control and the audit.

Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Commitiee:

* Chris Georghiades - Chairman
« Kamel Abunahl
* Mehran Efthekhar

Secretary: Christos Christodoulou

The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee’s primary functions are to
assess and evaluate board members and their remuneration framework, review Board succession
plans, make recommendations to the Board on executive remuneration and incentive policies, and to
review senior management remuneration packages, recruitment, retention and termination policies,
incentive schemes and pension arrangements.

Risk Committee:

= Kyriakos Kazamias - Chairman
+ Andreas Constantinides
» Marios Hadjiyiannakis

Secretary: Michalis Aristides

The Risk Committee assists the board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the identification,
analysis, assessment and management of all the risks which the Company faces in its operation and
which may impact upon thie assets and liabilities of the Company; in particular (without limitation)
to assist in identifying those risks which may at first seem unlikely or even remote.

The Committee also monitors the compliance and anti-money laundering processes with the laws
and regulations as well as the code of conduct.

Investment Committee.

+ Marios Hadjiyiannakis —~ Chairman
= Chris Georghiades

» Mehran Eftekhar

» Christos Christodoulou

* Maria Fysentzides

« Michalis Aristides

Secretary: Michalis Aristides

The Investment Committee is a functional Committee, which assists the Board to formulate an
investment policy and to implement and monitor an investment strategy.
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
MANAGEMENT REPORT (continued)

Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company follows a policy of segregating the roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO).

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading and ensuring the effectiveness of the Board
and conduct of its meetings.

The CEO is respousible for the executive leadership and operational management of the Company.
The CEO is accountable to the Board for the development, recommendation of strategics, policies
and the framework of controls.

Corporate Governance

We have introduced the appropriate corporate governance practices from the inception and have
therefore established a Board of Directors and the relevant Board Committees which serve as a useful
tool in the oversight of the Company. Trust Cyprus follows those rules and regulations in order to
direct and manage our business effectively, in compliance with all the relevant local and international
business laws that apply.

The Board Committees comprise of a fully functioning Risk Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination and Remuneration Committee suitably staffed by non-executive Directors having the
appropriate background and experience and following their respective fully approved Charters of
operation.

Risk Management

» Monitoring the overall level of risk assumed by the Company, analyzing risk in both a
quantitative and qualitative manner, reviewing application effectiveness, monitoring the
progress of critical actions agreed by the business and providing assurance;

» Preparing and presenting regular risk and control reports to the Company’s Executive
Management, and Committees (Risk Committee, Audit Committee etc).

» Developing the Company’s control environment (i.e. policy framework, delegations of
authority) and assisting areas of the business to determine and implement specific risk
controls.

» Train staff, senior management on all aspects of risk management application and
development of a risk culture through raising awareness of risk across the organization.

Internal Audit

The risk based Internal Audit services were provided through the Nest Group Corporate Services
until April 2015, when a full time Internal Auditor was recruited by the Company, in order to set up
its own Internal Audit Department.

All the reports of the Internal Audit are presented to the Audit Committee where they are discussed
and approved.

Events after the balance sheet date

Depending on the duration of the Coronavirus disease (Covid-19) pandemic, and continued negative
impact on economic activity, the Company might experience some slowdown in the collection of
premiums receivable and some decrease in the fair value of investments in 2021. The exact impact on the
Company’s activities in 2021 and thereafter cannot be predicted.
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited
MANAGEMENT REPORT (continued)

Events after the balance sheet date (continued)

In the year ending 31 December 2020 the Company increased the provision for doubtful debts by
€426.254 and recognised fair value decreases of €242.889 in available for sale investments, €46.688 in
investments at fair value through profit or loss and €559.650 in investment properties.

The Company has taken a series of measures in order to protect the health and safety of its employees and
associates, in order to ensure its business continuity. The management is closely monitoring the situation

in order to take all steps possible to mitigate any effects on the Company’s financial results.

Branches

The Company did not operate through any branches during the year.

Independent Auditors

The Independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited, have expressed their willingness to

continue in office. A resolution giving authority to the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

- L LA ‘
05 UL T LI
Cyproservus Co. Limited

Secretary
Nicosia
7 April 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of Trust International Insurance Company
{Cyprus) Limited (the “Company”) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

What we have audited
We have audited the financial statements which are presented in pages 23 to 70 and comprise:

the statement of financial position as-at 31 December 2020;

the income statement for the year then ended;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of 51gn1ﬁcant accountmg
policies,

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial
statements is International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and
the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Company throughout the period of our appointment in
accordance with the Infernational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA
Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Cyprus and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the TESBA. Code,

i PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, PwC Central, 43 Demostheni Severi Avenue, C¥-1080 Nicosia
P O Box 21612, CY-1591 Nicosia, Cyprus
T: +357 - 22 555 000, F:+357 - 22 555 001, WWW.PWC.CONMLLY

PricewaterhouseCoopers Lid is a private company registered in Cyprus (Reg. No.143594). lis registered office is at 3 Themistocles Dervis Street, CY-1066, Nicosia.
A list of the company’s directers, including for individuals the present and former (if any) name anid surmame and nationality, if not Cypriot and for legal entities the
corporate name, is kept by the Secretary of the company at its registered office. PwC.refers to the Cyprus member firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd-and may
sometimes refer to the PwC network. Each member firm is a separate legal entity. Please see www.pwc.convstructure for further details.
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Key audit matters incorporating the most significant risks of material misstatements,
including assessed risk of material misstatements due to fraud

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Gross outstanding claims

As at 31 December 2020 Gross cutstanding
claims amounted to €26.923.494, which
constituted over 50% of total liabilities in the
financial statements. Accordingly, they
represented the most significant liahility class
on the Company’s statement of financial
position.

Detailed note disclosures on Gross outstanding
claims are presented in Note 17. The
accounting policies for Gross outstanding
claims are included in Note 2.5 and
information on significant judgements and
estimates of Gross outstanding claims is
disclosed in Note 2.3.

The estimation of Gross outstanding claims
which includes, amongst others, the IBNR
reserve, involves complex and subjective
judgements regarding the future development
of claims. The estimation also depends on the
actuarial methods performed in order to
produce the final results.

The below procedures have been performed by
the audit team:

We understood, evaluated the design and
determined whether controls over the
premium revenue business cycle have been
implemented and tested their operating
effectiveness as follows:

i}  the reconciliation of open claims as per
the accounting system to the insurance
system;

ii) the approval of initial claim reserve

estimates pertaining to notified claims;

authorised signatories upon claim

payment.

With respect to the reserve for outstanding
claims, we performed substantive tests of
details by reviewing on a sample basis relevant
documentation in support of the management
estimate and considered the results of our legal
circularisation,

1ii)

We also performed Took back’ procedures in
order to compare prior year estimates against
actual amounts at which these claims were
settled during the year.

With respect to IBNR reserving, we agreed the
input data used by the management expert
(Company actuary) to calculate IBNR reserves
as disclosed in the actuarial report to our audit
working papers.

Furthermore, we engaged actuarial experts
from the PwC Network to :

i)  assess the reasonableness of the
methodologies and assumptions used by
the management expert in the caleulation
of the IBNR reserves and

ii) check the mathematical accuracy of the
management expert’s IBNR reserves for
significant product lines.

The results of these procedures were
satisfactory.
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2. Gross Written Premiums The below procedures have been performed by
the audit team:

During the year ended 31 December 2020

gross written premiums amounted to

€36.522.155 (as disclosed in Note 3 of the

financial statements).

We performed substantive tests of details on a
selected sample of revenue transactions by
tracing them to supporting insurance policy
contracts, thereby assessing the accuracy of

The gross written premiums constitute the sampled items as well ds whether they have
most significant item within the Company’s been recognized in the appropriate accounting
income statement. period.

The accounting policies for gross written We have tested via Computer Assisted Audit
premiums are included in Note 2.5. Techniques (“CAATS”) that all production

(premium) data was accurately transferred
from the Company’s insurance systems to the
general ledger.

For the testing of general ledger journals that
relate to gross written premiums, we used a
specialized journal entry analysis tool ("Halo
for Journals”) and by applying risk-criteria
which we assessed as appropriate, identified
specific premium journals for testing

TFurthermore, we performed tests on cancelled
policies shortly after the year-end to assess for
reasonableness vis a vis analogous prior year
cancellations (ie that cancellations were within
the normal course of business).

Finally, we considered whether the Company’s
disclosures in relation to gross written
premiums are in accordance with the relevant
accounting requirements and appropriately
presented in the financial statements.

The results of these procedures were
satisfactory.

Reporting on other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Message from the Chairman, the Message from the Chief Executive
Officer, the Additional Information and the Management Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assiirance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial staterments, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and those charged with governance form
the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, and for such
internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an andit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if; individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
.one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s.internal control.

a Hvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern. : :

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
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relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Pursuant to the requirements of Article 10(2) of the EU Regulation 537/2014 we provide the
following information in our Independent Auditor’s Report, which is required in addition to the
requirements of International Standards on Auditing.

Appointment of the Auditor and Period of Engagement

We were first appointed as auditors of the Company on 8 September 2016 by the Board of Directors
in respect of the audit for the year ended 31 December 2016. Our appointment has been renewed
annually by shareholder resolution representing a total period of uninterrupted engagement
appointment of four years.

Consistency of the Additional Report to the Audit Committee

We confirm that our audit opinion on the financial statements expressed in this report is consistent
with the additional report to the Audit Committee of the Company, which we issued on 7 April 2021
in accordance with Article 11 of the EU Regulation 537/2014.

Provision of Non-audit Services

We declare that no prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5 of the EU Regulation
537/2014 and Section 72 of the Auditors Law of 2017 were provided. In addition, there are no non-
audit services which were provided by us to the Company and which have not been disclosed in the
financial statements or the management report.

Other Legal Requirements
Pursuant to the additional requirements of the Auditors Law of 2017, we report the following:

D In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, the management
report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Cyprus Companies
Law, Cap. 113, and the information given is consistent with the financial statements.

o In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material
misstatements in the management report. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a
body in accordance with Article 10(1) of the EU Regulation 537/2014 and Section 69 of the
Auditors Law of 2017 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whose knowledge this report may
come to.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Stelios
Consjantingu.

Stelios Constantinou
Certified Public Accountant and Registered Auditor
for and on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors

City House, 6 Karaiskakis Street

CY-3032 Limassol, Cyprus
Limassol, 7 April 2021
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Gross earned premiums
Reinsurers’ share of gross earned premiums

Net earned premiums

Fee and commission income

Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred acquisition income

Investment income

Other income from insurance operations

Total revenue from insurance operations

Gross insurance claims paid
Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance claims
paid
Gross change in insurance contracts
liabilities
Reinsurers’ share of gross change in insurance
contracts liabilities
Change in provision for claims handling expense
reserve
Commission expense, direct expenses and discounts
Administrative expenses for insurance operations
Finance costs

Total expenses for insurance operations
Net revenue from insurance operations
Other income

Other operating and administrative expenses

Profit from operating activities before income tax
[ncome tax

Net profit for the year

Notes

W

17

17

17

17

17

2020 2019
€ €
35.364.399 34.519.891
(6.462.120) (6.353.324)
28.902.279 28.166.567
3.897.197 3.748.645
161.712 243.683
(71.343) (57.507)
(64) 31.638
195.115 170.145
33.084.896 32.303.171
(14.443.526) (17.622.492)
1.679.819 1.622.257
(1.982.719) (1.357.194)
50.792 421.259
(19.112) (25.511)
(7.385.502) (7.385.635)
(7.328.691) (5.993.600)
(103.087) (54.941)

(29.532.026)

(30.395.857)

3.552.870 1.907.314
1.156.851 1.367.879
(1.033.535) (572.342)
3.676.186 2.702.851
(413.217) (334.116)
3.262.969 2.368.735

23



Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified in the
income statement in subsequent periods

Net (loss)/ gain on available-for-sale investments
Transfer to the income statement on sale

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified in
the income statement in subsequent periods
Revaluation of land and buildings

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other comprehensive (loss)/ income after tax

Total comprehensive income for the year
after tax

Notes

11
i1

(=43

2020 2019
€ €
3.262.969 2.368.735
(242.889) 802.724
29.049 173.569
(213.840) 976.293
88.826 75.094
(2.688) 2.038
86.138 77.132
(127.702) 1.053.425
3.135.267 3.422.160
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2020

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Non-current receivables
Deferred income tax assets

Current assets

Available-for-sale investments

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
Deferred acquisition costs

Receivables from related companies

Premiums receivable

Other debtors and prepayments

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital

Available for sale reserve
Property revaluation reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities
Deferred acquisition income
Reinsurers’ current accounts
Payables to related companies

Other creditors and accrued expenses
Current income tax liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

/
Andreas Constantinides (5'}9 Uu‘“"'”’“{"j"“

Christos Christodoulou

7 April 2021

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
Notes € €
8 7.593.483 6.897.175
9 769.866 829.512
10 26.915.463 27.045.463
20 722.103 718.084
7b 165.419 61.089
36.166.334 35.551.323
Ila 20.342.967 19.310.792
11b 58.416 105.104
17 6.580.389 6.281.741
3 3.052.256 2.890.544
18 1.566.299 1.364.538
5.911.555 5.778.105
13 3.024.010 3.035.121
14 5.877.127 2.446.230
46.413.019 41.212.175
82.579.353 76.763.498
15 27.107.000 27.107.000
444 471 658.311
694.383 608.245
5.156.281 2.893.312
33.402.135 31.266.868
7a 176.771 181.683
176.771 181.683
17 42.493.506 39.333.919
3 654,946 583.603
452.747 423.612
18 445,081 604.430
19 4.913.927 4.285.393
40.240 83.990
49.000.447 45.314.947
49.177.218 45.496.630
82.579.353 76.763.498

- Director

- Director/Chief Executive Officer

25



Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Available Property

Share forsale  revaluation Retained
Capital reserve reserve earnings Total
€ € € € €
1 January 2019 20.000.000 (317.982) 531.113 2.779.353 22.992.484
Profit for the year - - - 2.368.735 2.368.735
Other comprehensive
income after tax - 976.293 77.132 - 1.053.425
Total comprehensive
income for the year - 976.293 77.132 2.368.735 3.422.160
Transactions with owners
Dividend paid - - - {2254.776)  (2.254.776)
Increase of share capital 7.107.000 - - - 7.107.000
31 December 2019 27.107.600 658.311 608.245 2.893.312 31.266.868
Profit for the year - - - 3.262.969 3.262.969
Other comprehensive
(loss) income after tax - (213.840) 86.138 - (127.702)
Total comprehensive
income for the year - (213.840) 86.138 3.262.969 3.135.267
Transactions with owners
Dividend paid - - - {1.000.000)  (1.000.000)
At 31 December 2020 27.107.600 444471 694.383 5.156.281 33.402.135

Companies which do not distribute 70% of their profits after tax, as defined by the Special Contributicn for the
Defence of the Republic Law, by the end of the two years after the end of the year of assessment to which the
profits refer, will be deemed to have distributed this amount as dividend. Special contribution for defence will
be payable on such deemed dividend to the extent that the shareholders for deemed dividend distribution
purposes at the end of the period of two years from the end of the year of assessment to which the profits refer,
are Cyprus iax residents. The special contribution for defence rate increased from 15% to 17% in respect of
profits of year of assessment 2009 and to 20% in respect of profits of years of assessment 2010 and 2011 and
was reduced back to 17% in respect of profits of years of assessment 2012 onwards. From 1 March 2019, the
deemed dividend distribution is subject to a 1,70% contribution to the General Healthcare System, increased
to 2,65% from 1 March 2020, with the exception of April 2020 until June 2020 when the 1,70% rate was
applicable. The amount of this deemed dividend distribution.is reduced by any actual dividend paid out of the
profits of the relevant year by the end of the period of two years from the end of the year of assessment to
which the profits refer. This special contribution for defence is paid by the Company for the account of the
shareholders. '
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Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of propeérty and equipment and
amortisation of intangible assets 4
Profit on disposal of equipment
Profit on sale of available-for-sale investments 5
Loss/ (profit) on investments at fair value through
profit or loss 11
Loss on investment properties fair value changes 10

e

{Increase)/ decrease in premium receivable

Increase in deferred acquisition costs

Inerease in deferred acquisition income

Decrease/ (increase) in other debtors and prepayments

(Increase) decrease in balances with related companies

Increase in reinsurers’ curent accounts

Increase in reinsurers’ share of insurance contract
liabilities

Decrease in deposits with banks

Increase in insurance contract liabilities

Increase in other creditors and accrued expenses

(Increase) decrease in non-current receivables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment 8
Purchase of computer software and other intangibles 9
Proceeds from disposal of equipment

Proceeds trom sale of investments

Purchase of investments

Purchase of investment properties 10
Write off of intangible assets

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to the shareholder

Net cash flows used in linancing activities
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at | January
Cash and cash eguivalents at 31 December 14

Non cash transactions

2020 2019
€ €
3.676.186 2.702.851
820.535 630.181
(6.375) (227.545)
(5.848) (170.696)
46.688 (10.141)
559.650 236.247
5.090.836 3.160.897
(133.450) 63.851
(161.712) (243.683)
71.343 57.507
11111 (1.456.573)
(361.110) 173.776
29.135 46.974
(298.648) (609.369)
335.202 8.654.166
3.159.587 2.466.957
628.534 569.712
(4.019) 3.381
8.366.809 12.887.596
(568.897) (362.106)
1.797.912 12.525.490
(1.008.082) (517.647)
(361.914) (398.733)
8.000 484,264
3.815.421 3.734.439
(5.055.588) (4.702.515)
(429.650) (12.993.710)

- 4.601
(3.031.813) (14.389.301)
{1.000.000) (2.254.776)
(1.000.000) (2.254.776)
3.766.099 (4.118.587)
2.111.028 6.229.615
5.877.127 2.111.028

On 16 December 2019 the Company acquired investment properties at a cost of €7.107.000 as a result of
the increase in the share capital. This transaction is not included in the purchase of investment properties

and the issue of share capital in the above statement of cash flows.
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1.

General information

The financial statements of Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited (the
“Company”™) for the year ended 31 December 2020 were authorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 7 April 2021.

Country of incorporation

The Company was incorporated in Cyprus on 5 December 1990 as a limited liability company
in accordance with the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113 and is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd.

The registered office of the Company is located at 284 Archbishop Makarios IIl Avenue,
Fortuna Court Block B, 2™ floor, 3015 Limassol, Cyprus.

Principal activities

The Company is engaged in the general insurance business in Cyprus and reinsurance
business.

Operating environment of the Company

The Cyprus economy has been adversely affected by the outbreak of the new coronavirus
{Covid-19). On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the outbreak of
Covid-19 a global pandemic recognising its rapid spread across the globe. In response to the
pandemic, the government of the Republic of Cyprus and various governments globally
implemented and continue to implement numerous measures attempting to contain and delay
the spreading and impact of COVID-19, such as requiring self-isolation by those potentially
affected, implementing social distancing measures and mass quarantines, controlling or
closing borders and imposing limitations on business activity, including closure of non-
essential businesses.

These measures have, among other things, severely restricted economic activity both in Cyprus
and globally and they have negatively impacted, and could continue to negatively impact,
businesses, market participants as well as the Cyprus and global economies as they persist for
an unknown period of time.

As aresult of the measures imposed by the government, the Company was not forced to close,
because Insurance companies are considered essential businesses.

The Management of the Company has taken and continues to take measures to safeguard the
health and safety of its staff and agents as well as its clients and associates, in order to ensure
minimum disruption and sustainability of the Company’s operations. The Company implemented
almost immediately a “hybrid modus operandi”. Within a few days the Company was able to
operate online ensuring to continue providing excellent service to its customers and agents,
safeguarding the public health. Key functions were either transferred online, or provided by
staff and/or agents working remotely, maintaining the same level of service. 50% of employees
were working from home, production, claims and collections were serviced electronically via
enhancements to production systems and agent’s portal. Policies, claims and collections were
electronically processed and distributed to the agents and clients via emails. Meetings and
trainings were performed using online platforms. Furthermore, the Company imposéd strict
rules of hygiene to protect the health and safety of its staff and associates.
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1.

21

General information (continued)
Operating environment of the Company (continued)

The unprecedented economic conditions have affected the ability of the Company to collect
its premiums receivable and have also affected the fair value of its investments.

The Company’s management has assessed the impairment of premiums receivable, and has
increased the provision for doubtful debts by €426.254 as disclosed in Note 23. The
Company’s management has assessed the potential impact on valuation of property and
investment properties carried at fair value, and has recognised a fair value decrease of
€559.650 in relation to the investment properties as disclosed in Note 10. The Company’s
management has also recognised fair value decreases of €242.889 in available for sale investments
and €46.688 in investments at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in Note 11.

The Company’s management has assessed the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern. The satisfactory results of the Company for the year, do not raise any material
uncertainty on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern,

The. future effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and of the above measures on the Cyprus
economy, and consequently on the future financial performance, cash flows and financial
position of the Company, are difficult to predict and management’s current expectations and
estimates could differ from actual results. The Company’s management believes that it is
taking all the necessary measures to maintain the viability of the Company and the
development of its business in the current economic environment.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and in accordance with
the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for own
properties, investment properties and investments classified as available-for-sale and at fair
value through profit or loss, that have been measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency of the financial statements

The financial statements are presented in Euro (€)-and all amounts are rounded to the nearest
euro, except where otherwise indicated.

Deferral of IFRS9 “Financial Instruments”

The Company has taken the exemption from implementation of IFRS 9. Until annual periods
beginning 1 January 2023, the amendment to IFRS 4 allows insurers to continue to apply IAS
39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement', instead of adopting IFRS 9, if their
activities are ‘predominantly connected with insurance’.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

2.2.1 Application of new standards, interpretations and amendments to IFRS

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs: During the current year the Company adopted all the new and
revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are relevant to its operations and are
effective for.accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2020. This adoption did not have a material
effect on the accounting policies of the Company. In relation to the adoption of I[FRS16 “Leases”,
that became cffective on 1 January 2019, the Company did not recognise any assets and liabilities
for its leases, because the leases either have a term of less than 12 months or the underlying assets
are of low value.

2.2.2 Standards and interpretations that are issned but not yet effective

At the date of approval of these financial statements, a number of new standards, interpretations and
amendments to existing standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2020,
and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these is expected to have
a significant effect.on the financial statements of the Company, except the following set out below:

e [FRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. The activities of the Company are predominantly connected
with insurance. In this regard, the Company has obtained a temporary exemption from the
adoption of IFRS 9 until 2023 based on the following assessment:

- The Company has not previously applied any version of IFRS 9

- The total carrying amount of liabilities arising from contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 for
the year ended 31 December 2020 represents 86% of the total liabilities of the Company
{which is considered significant)

- The financial assets {cash and bank balances, receivables from related parties) of the
Company with contractual cash flows that meet the SPPI criteria are carried at amortised
cost and their fair value approximates their carrying amount as per 1AS 39.

The other financial instruments (bond securities) held by the Company are measured at fair value.

Key features of IFRS 9 are:

i. Financial assets are required to be classified into three measurement categories: those to be
measured subsequently at amortised cost, those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL).

ii. Classification for debt instruments is driven by the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and whether the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI). If a debt instrument is held to collect, it may be carried at amortised cost if it also
meets the SPPI requirement. Debt instruments that meet the SPPI requirement that are held in a
portfolio where an entity both holds to collect assets” cash flows and sells assets may be classified
as FVOCI. Financial assets that do not contain cash flows that are SPPI must be measured at FVPL
{for example, derivatives). Embedded derivatives are no lenger separated from financial assets but
will be included in assessing the SPPI condition.

iii. Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value. However, management can
make an irrevocable election to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income,
provided the instrument is not held for trading. If the equity instrument is held for trading, changes
in fair value are presented in profit or loss.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
2.2.2 Standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective (continued)

iv. Most of the requirements in [AS 39 for classification and measurement of financial liabilities
were carried forward unchanged to IFRS 9. The key change is that an entity will be required to
present the effects of changes in own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss in other comprehensive income.

v. IERS 9 introduces a new model for the recognition of impairment losses — the expected credit
losses (ECL) model. There is a ‘three stage® approach which is based on the change in credit quality
of financial assets since initial recognition. In practice, the new rules mean that entities will have to
record an immediate loss equal to the 12-month ECL on initial recognition of financial assets that
are not credit impaired (or lifetime ECL for trade receivables). Where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk, impairment is measured using lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL. The
model includes operational simplifications for lease and trade receivables.

vi. Hedge accounting requirements were amended to align accounting mote closely with risk
management. The standard provides entities with an accounting policy choice between applying the
hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 and continuing to apply IAS 39 to all hedges because the
standard currently does not address accounting for macro hedging.

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments to IFRS 4
(issued on 12 September 2016 and effective, depending on the approach, for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 for entities that choose to apply temporary exemption option,
or when the entity first applies IFRS 9 for entities that choose to apply the overlay approach). The
amendments address concerns arising from implementing the new financial instruments Standard,
IFRS 9, before implementing the replacement Standard that the IASB is developing for IFRS 4,
These concerns include temporary volatility in reported results. The amendments introduce two
approaches: an overlay approach and a deferral approach. The amended Standard will give all
companies that issue insurance contracts the option to recognise in other comprehensive income,
rather than profit or loss, the volatility that could arise when IFRS 9 is applied before the new
insurance contracts Standard is issued. In addition, the amended Standard will give companies whose
activities are predominantly connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from
applying IFRS 9 until 2022, The Company will defer the application of [FRS 9 as disclosed above
and will continue to apply the existing financial instruments standard - IAS 39.

¢ Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (issued on 29
March 2018 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020)*. The
revised Conceptual Framework includes: a new chapter on measurement; guidance on
reporting financial performance; improved definitions and guidance — in particular, the
definition of a liability; and clarifications in important areas, such as the roles of stewardship,
prudence and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting.

e IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts” (issued on 18 May 2017 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023)*. [FRS 17 replaces [FRS 4, which has given
companies dispensation to carry on accounting for insurance contracts using existing
practices. As a consequence, it was difficult for investors to compare and contrast the
financial performance of otherwise similar insurance companies. IFRS 17 is a single
principle-based standard to account for all types of insurance contracts, including
reinsurance contracts that an insurer holds. The standard requires recognition and
measurement of groups of insurance contracts at: (i) a risk-adjusted present value of the
future cash flows (the fulfilment cash flows) that incorporates all of the available information
about the fulfilment cash flows in a way that is consistent with observable market
information; plus (if this value is a liability) or minus (if this value is an asset) (ii) an amount
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
2.2.2 Standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective (continued)

representing the unearned profit in the group of contracts (the contractual service margin).
Insurers will be recognising the profit from a group of insurance contracts over the period
they provide insurance coverage, and as they are released from risk. If a group of coniracts
is or becomes loss-making, an entity will be recognising the loss immediately.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on its financial statements and
as of the date of issue of these financial statements the impact of the amendments is not known / or
reasonable estimable.

* Denotes standards, interpretations and amendments which have not yet been endorsed by the
European Union.

2.3 Significant judgments and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS, requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date. Actual resulis may vary from
these current estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically, and, as adjustments become
necessary, they are reported in the income statement in the periods in which they become known.

The main assumptions and estimates concerning the future on the reporting date that pose a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next year relate to:

Going concern

The Company’s management has assessed the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern. In making this assessment, the Company’s management has also considered the current
economic situation in Cyprus and specifically in relation to the Covid-19 pandemic, and the
potential impact this may have on the Company’s operating environment and financial position.

The management have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence in the foreseeable future, and in particular in relation to the
Covid-19 pandemic. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the annual financial statements.

Insurance business contracts

For the insurance business contracts, estimates are made for the expected ultimate cost of claims
reported and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) at the
reporting date. The estimation of the liability arising from claims on insurance contracts is the
most critical accounting estimate made by the Company. The Company reviews every reported
claim, and the estimated insurance liability is based on the facts of each claim, on prior years’
experience and on other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Company is liable for all insured events that have been reported during the term period of
the contract even if the loss is discovered after the expiration of the contract term. As a result
the Company estimates the claims incurred but not reported (IBNR). Given the uncertainty in
establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from
the original liability established. The estimation of IBNR in particular is generally subject to a
greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified
to the Company, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims may not be
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2.3 Significant judgments and estimates (continued)

apparent until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims. The total IBNR is split
between pure IBNR and IBNER. The Company monitors frequently the IBNR amount and its
development and adjusts the amount accordingly. For further details refer to Note 22 and Note
23.

Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities

The Company’s reinsurance treaties are managed/ administered by a related company (Note 18).
On the basis of a legal assessment performed, the Company has concluded that the related
company is only acting as an agent and that therefore the legal counterparties for credit risk and
regulatory purposes are the ultimate reinsurers (Note 23).

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

The Company reviews its trade and other receivables for evidence of their recoverability. Such
evidence includes the customer's payment record and the customer’s overall financial position.
If indications of irrecoverability exist, the recoverable amount is estimated and a respective
provision for bad and doubtful debts is made. In addition to the above specific provisions, the
Company assesses the amounts receivable from its retail customers collectively and provides
for the overdue amounts separately under a collective provision. The amount of the provision is
charged through profit or loss. The review of credit risk is continuous and the methodology and
assumptions used for estimating the provision are reviewed regularly and adjusted accordingly.

Fair value of property and investment properties

The Company’s accounting policy for property held for own use requires that it is measured at
fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses recognised at the date of
revaluation, with changes being recorded in other comprehensive income.

The Company carries its investment properties at fair value with changes in fair value being
recognised in the income statement.

Valuations are carried out by qualified valuers by applying valuation models recommended by
the International Valuation Standards.

Depending on the nature of the underlying asset and available market information, the
determination of the fair value-of property may require the use of estimates such as future cash
flows from assets and discount rates applicable to those assets. All these estimates are based on
local market conditions existing at the reporting date.

In arriving at their estimates of market values as at 31 December 2020, the valuers used their
market knowledge-and professional judgement and did not rely solely on historical transactional
comparables, taking into consideration that there is a greater degree of uncertainty than that
which exists in a more active market, in estimating the market values of property. For further
details refer to Note 8 and Note 10.

Impairment of available-for-sale -investments

Available-for-sale ‘investments in equity securities are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in their fair value below cost. In such a case, the total loss
previously recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement, The determination of
what is significant or prolonged requires judgement by management. The factors which are
evalnated include the expected volatility in share prices. In addition, impairment may be
appropriate when there is evidence that significant adverse changes have taken place in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the investee operates.
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Available-for-sale investments in debt securities.are impaired when there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
investment and the loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the investment. The Company’s policy in place requires that a review for potential impairment
is carried out. Such impairment review takes into account a number of factors such as the

financial condition of the issuer, any breach of contract, the probability that the issuer will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, which involves a high degree of judgement.

Income taxes

The Company operates and is therefore subject to taxation in Cyprus. Estimates are required in
determining the provision for taxes at the reporting date, and therefore the tax determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax expense, the tax liabilities and deferred tax liabilities of
the period in which the final tax is agreed with the tax authorities.

2.4 Change in accounting policy and prior year adjustment

There were no changes in accounting policies during the reporting period.

2.5 Summary of significant aceounting policies

2.5.1 Revenue recognition

Gross premiums

Gross general insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole
period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the accousnting period. They are
recognised on the date on which the policy commences. Premiums include any adjustments
arising in the accounting period for preminms receivable in respect of business written in prior
accounting periods. Rebates that form part of the premium rate, such as no-claim rebates, are
deducted from the gross premium; others are recognised as an expense. Premiums collected by
intermediaries, but not yet received, are assessed based on estimates from underwriting or past
experience and are included in premiums written.

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods
of risk after the reporting date. Uneamed premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The
proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

Reinsurance premiums

Gross general reinsurance premiums written comprise the total premiums payable for the whole
cover provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognised on the date on which the
policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of
reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate
to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the
term of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks-attaching contracts and over the term
of the reinsurance contract for losses-occurring contracts.
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2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.5.1 Revenue recognition {continued)

Fees and commission income

Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services and other
contract fees. These fees are recognised as revenue over the period in which the related services
are performed. If the fees are for services provided in future periods, then they are deferred and
recognised over those future periods.

Invesiment income

Interest income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues and is calculated by using
the effective interest rate method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective
yield of the financial asset or liability are recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest
rate of the instrument. Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive
payment is established.

Realised gains and losses

Realised gains and losses recorded in the income statement on investments include gains and
losses on financial assets and investment properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments
are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost
and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

2.5.2 Benefits, claims and expenses recognition

Gross benefits and clainis

General insurance and health claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether
reported or not, related internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the
processing and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries,
and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

Reinsurance claims

Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised
according to the terms of the relevant contract.

Finance cost

Interest paid is recognised in the income statement as it accrues and is calculated by using the
effective interest rate method. Accrued interest is included within the carrying value of the
[interest bearing financial liability.

2.5.3 Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) and Deferred acquisition income (DAT)

Those direct and indirect costs incurred during the financial period arising from the writing or
renewing of insurance contracts, are deferred to the extent that these costs are recoverable out
of future premiums. All other acquisition costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

The commission income on reinsurance premiums incurred during the financial period arising
from the writing or renewing of insurance contracts, is deferred to the extent that these revenues
are recoverable out of future premiums. All other commission income is recognised as a revenue
when incurred.

DAC for general insurance and health products are amortised over the period in which the
related revenues are earned.

35



Trust International Insurance Company (Cyprus) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5.3 Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) and Deferred acquisition income (DAI) (continued)

DAI for general insurance products, are recognised over the period in which the related revenues

are earned.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period and are

treated as a change in an accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when

an

indication of impairment arises. When the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value,

an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. DAC and DALI are also considered in

the liability adequacy test for each reporting period.
DAC and DAI are derecognised when the related contracts are either settled or disposed of.

2.5.4 Insurance contract liabilities (zeneral insurance and healthcare contract liabilities)

Non-life insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding claims provision, the provision
for unearmed premium, the provision for unexpired risks and the provision for claims handling
expense. The outstanding claims provision is based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims
incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether reperted or not, together with related
claims handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries.

Delays can be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore,

the ultimate cost of these cannot be known with certainty at the reporting date. The liability is
calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques,
based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse
deviation. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money. No. provision for

equalisation or catastrophe reserves is recognised. The liabilities are derecognised when the

obligation to pay a claim expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

The provision for unearned premiums represents that portion of premiums received

or

receivable that relates to risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date. The provision is
recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are charged, and is brought to account
as premium income over the term of the contract in accordance with the pattern of insurance

service provided under the contract.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is
performed in accordance with the relevant guidelines of the Superintendent of Insurance in
Cyprus to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premivms. This calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets
relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the
carrying amount of the uncarned premiums (less related deferred acquisition costs) is
inadequate, the deficiency is recognised in the income statement by setting up a provision for

unexpired risks.
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2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.5.5 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The
Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or
originated. Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss where the
Company’s documented investment strategy is to manage financial investments on a fair value
basis, because the related liabilities are also managed on this basis.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

(a) Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Investments
typically bought with the intention to sell in the near future are classified as held for trading. For
investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the following criteria must be met:

o The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a
different basis; Or

o The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, or both,
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management or investment strategy.

These investments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are
remeasured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement,

(b) Available-for-sale (AFS) financial investments

AFS investments include equity investments and debt instruments. Equity investments classified
as AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt instruments classified as AFS are non-derivatives that are either designated
in this category if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable payments and
management intends to hold them for the medium to long term or not classified in any of the
other categories.

After initial measurement, AFS financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value
with unrealised gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) and credited in
the AFS reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in other operating income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when
the cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to the income statement.
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2.5.5 Financial assets (continued)
(c) Loans and receivables

This category is the most relevant to the Company and includes reinsurers’ share of insurance
contract liabilities and reinsurers’ current accounts, receivables from related companies,
premiums receivables, other debtors and cash and bank balances. Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; Or
The Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through’ arrangement;
and either:

» The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; Or

o The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.

2.5.6 Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.5.6 Financial Liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied. The
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

(b} Other financianl liabilities

This is the category most relevant to the Company and includes loans and borrowings, insurance
contract liabilities, reinsurer’s current accounts, payable to related companies and other creditors.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2,57 Ofisetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if, and ounly if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense will not be offset in the income
statement unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, as
specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

2.5.83 Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses.
Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable
from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or
settled claims associated with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related
reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when
an indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is
objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance
asset that the Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the
contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will
receive from the reinsurer, The impairment loss is recorded in the income statement.
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2.5.8 Reinsurance (continued)

Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognised in the income statement immediately at
the date of purchase and are not amortised.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company froin its obligations to
policyholders.

The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for non-life
insurance contracts where applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are
recognised as revenue or expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were
considered direct business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured
business.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are
estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Premiums and claims are
presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance. Reinsurance assets or
liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the
contract is transferred to another party.

2.5.9 Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance
receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. The carrying
value of insurance receivables is reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded in
the income statement. Insurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria
for financial assets, as described in Note 2.5.5 have been met.

2.5.10 Imsurance payables

Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value
of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Insurance payables include commissions payable to intermediaries on their written premiums
and premium reserve payable to reinsurers on their proportional reinsurance premiums.

2.5.11 Derecognition of insnrance payables

Insurance payables are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is settled, cancelled
or expired.

2.5.12 Provisions for pending litigation or claims

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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2.5.13 Retirement benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement plan that requires the payment of
contributions to a separately administered fund (funded scheme). The cost of providing benefits
under the defined contribution plan is recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis.

2.5.14 Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances includes cash and cash equivalents (which consist of cash at hand and
short term deposits) as well as bank deposits with an original maturity of more than three months
from the date of acquisition.

2.5.15 Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first quahﬁes for recognition.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or less arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

2.5.16 Leases — Company as a lessee

Until 31 December 2018 operating lease payments were recognised as an operating expense in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. From 1 January 2019, leases
are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Company, except for the short-term leases (term of 12 months
or less) and leases of low-value assets, which are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss.

2.5.17 Property and equipment

Owner-occupied property is property held by the Company for use in the supply of services or
for administrative purposes.

Owner-occupied property is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at fair value.
Valuations are carried out annually by independent qualified valuers. On disposal of freehold
land and buildings, the relevant revaluation reserve balance is transferred to retained earnings.

The buildings are depreciated at an annual rate of 2%.

Equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on cost on a straight line basis over its estlmated useful [ife, using the
following annual rates:
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2.5.17 Property and equipment {continued)

Furniture and office equipment 10%/ 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 15%
Leasehold improvements 25%

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the
assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of property and equipment is the greater of net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in'use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

2.5.18 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment in
value. Amortisation is calculated on cost on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
of the assets, of five years for computer software and for recruitment bonuses. At each reporting
date the carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be récoverable. When the
carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, intangible assets are written down to
their recoverable amount.

2.5.19 Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date
in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and
not in the income statement. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
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2.5.19 Incomnte taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI
or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.5.20 Fair value measurement

Depending on its adopted accounting policy, the Company measures certain financial
instruments and certain non-financial assets such as properties, at fair value at each reporting
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.5.20

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

2.5.21

2.5.22

2.5.23

2.5.24

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities : : :

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Defined contribution plan

The Company recognises obligations, in respect of the accounting period in the income
statement. Any unpaid contributions at the reporting date are included as a liability.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Company's financial statements in the year in which the dividends are appropriately
authorised and are no longer at the discretion of the Company. More specifically, interim
dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which these are authorised by the
Board of Directors and in the case of final dividends, these are recognised in the peried in
which these are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising land, shops and offices, are held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Company. Investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined annually by external valuers.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Share premium is the difference between the fair value of the consideration receivable for
the issue of shares and the nominal value of the shares. Share premium account can only be
resorted to for limited purposes, which do not include the distribution of dividends, and is
otherwise subject to the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law on reduction of share
capital.
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3. General insurance business

Earned premium income and reinsurance premiums

Total gross written premiums
Change in the provision for ungamed premiiums

Gross earned premiums

Total reinsurance premiums
Change in the provision for unearned reinsurance
Premiums

Earned reinsurance premiums

Net earned premiums

Deferred acquisition costs

1 January

Deferred acquisition costs for the year

Acquisition costs charged to the income
statement

31 Pecember

2020 2019
€ €
36.522.155 35.604.143
(1.157.756) (1.084.252)
35.364.399 34.519.891
(6.709.976) (6.541.434)
247.856 188.110
(6.462.120) (6.353.324)
28.902.279 28.166.567
2020 2019

€ €
2.890.544 2.646.861
(7.215.666) (7.055.722)
7.377.378 7.299.405
3.052.256 2.890.544

The change in deferred acquisition costs for the vear is included in the income statement.

Deferred acquisition income

1 January

Deferred acquisition income for the year

Commission income credited to the income
statement

31 December

2020 2019

€ €

583.603 526.096
(1.615.961) (1.540.044)
1.687.304 1.597.551
654.946 583.603

The change in deferred acquisition income for the year is recognised in the income statement.

Fee and commission income

Policy fees
Commission income from reinsurers

2020 2019

€ €
2.209.893 2.151.094
1.687.304 1.597.551
3.897.197 3.748.645
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4.  Administrative expenses for insurance operations
2020 2019
€ €
Salaries 3.608.658 3.118.872
Social insurance costs 327.874 304.168
Provident fund contributions 152,918 138.384
General Healthcare System 74.320 42,981
Other staff costs 145.798 156.582
4.309.568 3.760.987
Professional fees 84.644 131.050
Selling and advertising costs 300.998 304.822
Operating lease payments 68.472 66.262
Electricity, heating and water 48.322 52.363
Insurance, taxes and maintenance of building 119.252 66.878
Maintenance of office equipment and consumables 78.459 55.266
Computer expenses 504,711 181.746
Printing and stationery 68.789 70.690
Telephone expenses 87.921 60.796
Postages and courier expenses 50.268 61.882
‘Subscriptions 28.339 28.283
Entertainment expenses 27.530 35.332
Travelling expenses 886 34.943
Motor vehicle expenses 83.822 93.954
Storage expenses 66.587 66.539
Provision for doubtfiil debts 485.111 228.898
Depreciation of property and equipment 398.975 254.344
Amortisation of intangible assets 421.560 375.837
Other 34.172 23.862
Foreign exchange loss 60.305 38.866
7.328.691 5.993.600

Total staff costs for the year are included in "Administrative expenses for insurance operations” in
the income statement.

The average number of staff employed by the Company during 2020 was 117 (2019: 111).

The Company operates since August 2011, a defined contribution retirement benefit plan covering
all of its permanent employees in Cyprus. The plan is funded and is separately administered.

Other income and other operating and administrative expenses

2020 2019
€ €
Other income

Dividend income from available-for-sale investments 18.305 30.236
Interest income from available-for-sale investments 447,042 438.633
Profit on disposal of property and equipment 6.375 227.545
Rental income from investment properties 679.281 490.628
Profit on sale of available-for-sale investments 5.848 170.696

Change in fair value of investments at fair value
through profit or loss - 10.141
1.156.851 1.367.879
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2020 2019
€ €
Other operating and administrative expenses
Directors’ fees 151.400 131.400
Professional fees 79.572 79.938
Special levy 350 350
Investment portfolio fees 72.754 68.229
Expenses for investment properties 109.923 46.846
Defence on rental income 13.198 9.332
Change in fair value of investments at fair value through
profit or loss 46.688 -
Change in fair value of investment properties 559.650 236.247
1.033.535 572.342

Professional fees include fees (including taxes) of independent auditors of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Limited, for audit and other professional services rendered to the Company as follows:

2020 2019
€ €
Fees for the audit of the financial statements 59.500 59.500
Fees for other audit related services 16.660 16.660
Fees for tax services 1.840 1.904
Fees for other advisory services 30 26.861
78.030 104.925
6. Income tax
2020 2019
€ €
Current tax
‘Corporation tax 525.147 381.365
Total current tax 525.147 381.365
Deferred tax (Note 7)
Temporary differences of revaluation gains (111.930) (47.249)
Total deferred tax {111.930) (47.249)
Income tax expense as reported in the income statement 413.217 334.116

The reconciliation between income tax expense and profit before income tax, as estimated using
the current tax rates, is set out below:
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Profit from operating activities before income tax

Tax at Cyprus statutory income tax rate 12,5%
Tax effect of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Income not subject to Cyprus tax
Additional tax

Deferred tax

Income tax for the year

2020 2019
€ €
3.676.186 2.702.851
459.523 337.856
125.918 130.156
(60.294) (95.751)
. 9.104
(111.930) (47.249)
413.217 334.116

Corporate income in Cyprus is calculated at the rate of 12,5% on the taxable income of the year.

7. Deferred income tax

(@) Deferred income tax liabilities

The movement in deferred income tax liabilities during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2019
Charged/(credited) to:

Profit or loss (Note 6)

Other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2019
Charged/(credited) to:

Profit or loss (Note 6)

Other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2020

Fair value Fair value
gains on gains on

revaluation revaluation Toral
of land and of
buildings investment
properties

€ € €

33.527 136.354 169.881

- 13.840 13.840

(2.038) - (2.038)

31.489 150.194 181.683

- (7.600) (7.600)

2.688 - 2.688

34,177 142.594 176.771
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(b) Deferred income tax assets

The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year is as follows:

Fair value Fair value
losses on losses on
revaluation revaluation Total
of land and of
buildings investiment
properties
€ € €
At 1 January 2019 - - -
Charged/(credited) to:
Profit or loss (Note 6) - {61.089) (61.089)
Other comprehensive income - - -
At 31 December 2019 - 61.089 61.089
Charged/(credited) to:
Profit or loss (Note 6) - (104.330) {104.330)
Other comprehensive income - - -
At 31 December 2020 - 165.419 165.419
8.  Property and equipment
Property  Leasehold Motor  Computer Furniture Total
improvements vehicles  hardware equipnment
€ € € € £ €
2020
Cost or Valuation
1 January 6.308.000 150,197 539802 528.727 677.320 8.204.046
Revaluation 8.026 - - - - 8.026
Additions 146.974 15.030 §2.500 718.681 44 897 1.008.082
Disposals and write-offs - - (74.172) - . (74.172)
31 December 6.463.000 165.227 548.130 1.247.408 722217 9.145982
Depreciation
1 January - 149747 305.853 394,675 456.596 1.306.871
Revaluation (80.800) - - - - {80.800)
Charge for the year 80.800 4.207 72,655 188.335 52.978 398.975
Disposals and write-offs - - {72.547) - - {(72.547)
31 December - 153.654 305.961 383.010 509.574 1.552.499
Net book value
31 December 6.463.000 11.273 242,169 664.398 212.643 7.593.483
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Property  Leasehold Motor  Computer Furniture Total
improvements vehicles  hardware equipment
€ € € € € €

2019
Cost or Valnation
1 January 6.300.000 150.197 390.702 534.402 673.915 8.049.216
Revaluation (2.821) - - - - (2.821)
Additions 45.475 - 149.100 276.914 46.158 517.647
Disposals and write-offs (34.654) - - (282589 (42.753) {359.996)
31 December 6.308.000 150.197 539.802 528727 677.320 8.204.046
Depreciation
1 January - 147.858 240.159 423.672 422,031 1.233.720
Revaluation (77.916) - - - - (77.916)
Charge for the year 77.916 1.889 65.694 54.427 54418 254.344
Disposals and write-offs - - - (83.424) {19.853) (103.277)
31 December - 149.747 305.853 394,675 456.596 1.306.871
Net book value
31 December 6.308.000 450 233.949 134.052 220.724 6.897.175

All property is freehold and is shown at valuation carried out by independent professionally
qualified valuers at 31 December 2020 in accordance to [FRS 13. Fair value of the properties was
determined by using market comparable method. This means that valuations performed by the
valuer are based on active market prices, significantly adjusted for difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific property.

The cumulative revaluation surplus amounted to €88.826 (2019: €75.094) and is included in the
property revaluation reserve. The historical cost of property amounts to €6.189.580 (2019:
€6.042.606).

All property is used for the Company’s business purposes.
The net book value of frechold property, on a cost less accumulated depteciation basis, as at 31

December 2020 would have amounted to €5.719.424 (2019: €5.666.478).

During 2015 the Company started using the new property acquired in 2014 in Cyprus as its Head
Office. During 2017 the Company started using the new property acquired in 2017 in Cyprus as its
Larnaca Office.
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8.

Description

Land and
office
building in
Cyprus —
Nicosia

Office
building in
Cyprus -
Larnaca

Property and equipment (continued)

The table below presents the valuation technique and key inputs used in the valuation of property:

Fair value Fair value at
hierarchy
3171272020 3171272019
€ €
Level 3 6.285.000 6.130.000
Level 3 178.000 178.000
Sensitivity

Valuation
technigue

Market
comparable
approach

Market
comparable
approach

Inputs used in the determination
of fair values

Input

Adjusted
price per
square
meter based
on actual
sales of
similar
properties

Adjusted
price per
square
meter based
on actual
sales of
similar
properties

Weighted Weighted
average 2020 average 2019
Land Land
€2.500 £2.500
per square per square
meter, meter,
Building Building
€1.629 €1.564
per square per square
meter meter
Building Building
€978 per €978 per
square square
meter meter

A change in the valuation price of the property affects equity (unless there is an impairment). An
increase of 10% in the valuation price per square meter used by the valuer would increase the
Company’s equity by €646.300 (2019: €630.800). A decrease of 10% in the valuation price per
square meter used by the valuer would decrease the Company’s equity by €646.300 (2019:

€630.800). These amounts are before tax.

Intangible assets

2020
Cost
1 January
Additions
Write-offs

31 December
Depreciation
1 January

Charge for the year
Write-offs

31 December

Net book value
31 December

Computer  Recruitment Total
software bonuses
£ € €
560.365 2.698.925  3.259.290
21.544 340.370 361.914
581.909 3.039.295  3.621.204
366.193 2.063.585 2.429.778
66.537 355.023 421.560
432.730 2.418.608 2.851.338
149.179 620.687 769.866
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Computer ~ Recruitment Total
software bonuses
£ € €
219
Cost
1 January 500.717 2.382.840  2.883.557
Additions 59.648 339.085 398.733
Write-offs : - (23.000) (23.000)
31 December 560.365 2.698.925  3.259.290
Depreciation
1 January 296.068 1.776.272  2.072.340
Charge for the year 70.125 305.712 375.837
Write-offs - (18.39%) (18.399)
31 December 366.193 2.063.585 2429778
Net book value
31 December 194.172 635.340 §29.512
Investment properties
2020 2019
€ €
1 January 27.045.463 7.181.000
Additions (Note 18) 429.650 20.100.710
Disposals - -
Change in fair value (559.650) (236.247)
31 December 26.915.463 27.045.463

The investment properties comprise offices and shops in Neapolis Limassol and land in Asgata and
Ayios Tychonas Limassol.

Certain properties (classified as level 3) are shown at valuation carried out by independent
professionally qualified valuers at 31 December 2020 in accordance to IFRS 13. The fair value of
these properties is determined by using the market comparable method. This means that valuations
performed by the valuer are based on active market prices and other relevant information generated
by market transactions involving identical or comparable (i.e. similar) assets. Certain properties,
classified as level 3, are shown at fair value determined by using the income capitalisation method.

If investment properties were valued under the cost model, their carrying amount would have
amounted to €27.029.590 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: €26.599.940). The rental income from
investment properties during 2020 was £€679.281 (2019: €490.628). The direct operating expenses
relating to investment properties recognised in the income statement during 2020 were €109.923
(2019: €46.8406).
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10.

Description

Shops in
Cyprus -
Limassol

Offices in
Cyprus -
Limassol

Offices in
Cyprus -
Limassol

Land in
Cyprus -
Limassol
Asgata

Land in
Cyprus -
Limassol
Ayios
Tychonas

Investment properties (continued)

The table below presents the valuation technique and key inputs used in the valuation of properties:

Valuation Inputs used in the determination
Fair value Fair value at technique of fair values
hierarchy
31/12/2020  31/12/2019 Input Weighted Weighted
€ € average 2020 average 201
Level 3 5.080.000 5.100.000 Income Capitalisati Rate Rate
capitalisatio on rate 0 4,75% -
n approach 4,75%- 5,75%
5,75%
Level 3 6.702.000 6.300.000 Market Adjusted Building Building
comparable price per € €5.675
5.058
approach square per square
meter based per square meter
on actual
meter
sales of
similar
properties
Level 3 8.538.463 8.538.463 Market Adjusted Building Building
comparable price per €7.550 £7.550
approach square per square
meter based per square meter
on actual
sales of meter
similar
properties
fevel3 2.055.000 2.232.000 Market Adjusted Land €12 Land €13
comparable price per _ per square
per square
approach square meter
meter based meter
on actual
sales of
similar
properties
Level 3 4.540.000 4.875.000 Market Adjusted Land Land
comparable price per €133 per €142 per
approach square square
meter based square meter
on actual
meter
sales of
similar
properties
Sensitivity

A change in the valuation price of the investment properties affects the Company’s income
statement. An increase of 10% in the valuation price used would increase the Company’s profit
by €2.691.546 (2019: €2.704.546). A decrease of 10% in the valuation price used would decrease
the Company’s profit by €2.691.546 (2019: €2.704.546). These amiounts are before tax.
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11. Investments

(a) Available for sale investments

2020 2019
€ £
Equity shares
Listed on Cyprus Stock Exchange 321 305
Listed on Germany Stock Exchange 325.037 142.844
Listed on France Stock Exchange 672,757 201.975
Listed on Italy Stock Exchange 394,092 159.736
Listed on Spain Stock Exchange 52.319 82.961
Listed on Netherlands Stock Exchange 503.973 406.571
1.948.499 994.392
Government bonds
Listed 2.298.392 2.329.762
Corporate bonds
Listed 16.096.076 15.986.638

20.342.967 19.310.792

Income from investments for the year amounted to €465.347 (2019: €468.869) and is included in
"Other income" in the income statement.

The movement for the years 2020 and 2019 respectively is summarised below:

Interest Carrying
Cost receivable Revaluation amount
2020 2020 2020 2020
€ € € £

Equity shares, Government bonds and

Corporate bonds Available for sale

1 January 18.469.021 183.460 658.311 19.310.792
Additions 5.042.614 - - 5.042.614
Disposals (3.809.573} - 29.049 (3.780.524)
Revaluation - - (242.889) (242.889)
Interest receivable - 12.974 - 12.974
31 December 19.702.062 196.434 444471 20.342.967
Interest Carrying
Cost receivable Revaluation amount
2019 2019 2019 2019
€ 3 € €

Equity shares, Government bonds and

Corporate bonds Available for sale

1 January 17.347.450 164.292 (317.982) 17.193.800
Additions 4.616.753 - - 4.616.753
Disposals (3.495.222) - 173.569 (3.321.653)
Revaluation - - 802.724 802.724
Interest receivable - 19.168 - 19.168
31 December 18.469.021 183.460 658.311 19.310.792
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11. Investments (confinued)

(b} Investments at fair value through profit or loss

2020 2019
€ €

Equity shares
Listed on Cyprus Stock Exchange (note (a)) 7.350 12.059
Listed on France Stock Exchange (note (b)) 51.066 93.045
58.416 105.104

The movement for the years 2020 and 2019 respectively is summarised below:

Interest Fair value Carrying
Cost receivable  gains/(flosses) amount
2020 2020 2020 2020
€ € € €

Equity shares and Structured products at fair

value through profit or loss

1 January 348.730 - (243.626) 105.104
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Fair value losses - - {46.688) (46.688)
Interest receivable - - - -
31 December 348.730 - (290.314) 58416
Interest Fair value Carrying
Cost receivable  gains/({losses) amount
2(H9 2019 2019 - 2019
€ £ € €

Equity shares and Structured products at fair

value through profit or loss

1 January 352.214 1.882 (257.206) 96.8%0
Additions 146.516 - (78.041) 68.475
Disposals {150.000) - 81.480 (68.520)
Fair value losses - - 10.141 10.141
Interest receivable - (1.882) - {1.882)
31 December 348.730 - (243.626) 103.104

Note (a)

This represents shares in a listed bank, Bank of Cyprus, that were acquired as a result of the
conversion of the Bank’s deposits including shares in accordance with the relevant decrees issued
by the Central Bank of Cyprus.

Note (b)
This represents shares in a listed bank, Societe Generale SA, that were acquired as a result of the
redemption of a structured product.
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11. Investments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2020, the Company held the following financial instruments carried at fair value
in the statement of financial position:

Level I Level 2 Level 3 31
December
2020 € € € €
Available for sale
investments 20.342.967 - - 20.342.967
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss 58.416 - - 58.416
Level | Level 2 Level 3 37
December
2019 € € € ()
Available for sale
investments 19.310.792 - - 19.310.792
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss 105.104 - - 105.104
12. Deposits with banks
2020 2019
Description Maturity Interest rate € €
(per annum)
Current accounts 0% 4.329.190 1.585.144
Term deposits 0-3 months 0% 1.495.556 236.836
Term deposits 4-6 months 0% - 164.174
Term deposits 7-12 months 0% - 171.028
5.824.746 2.157.182

An amount of €85.0835 is blocked as security for letters of guarantee in favor of several beneficiaries
relevant to offers for insurance services (2019: €171.285). For credit and counterparty risk exposure
refer to note 23.
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13. Other debtors and prepayments

Prepayments and deposits

Prepayments for the acquisition of software
Amounts receivable from Cyprus Hire Risk Pools
Amounts receivable from Group Insurance Pools
Amounts receivable for replacement of destroyed
equipment

Other debtors and prepayments represent balances that are repayable during the normal course

of the Company’s operations and are interest-free.

14. Cash and bank balances

Cash with banks (Note 12)
Term deposits with banks (Note 12)
Cash in hand

Deposits with original maturity of over 3 months

(Note 12)

Cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of
cash flows

15. Share capital

Authorised
Ordinary Shares of €1 each

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary Shares of €1 each

[ January
Increase in issued share capital
31 December

2020 2019

€ €

606.143 819.780
1.068.849 962.368
704.201 594.687
139.133 152.602
505.684 505.684
3.024.010 3.035.121
2020 2019

€ €
4.329.190 1.585.144
1.495.556 572.038
52.381 289.048
5.877.127 2.446.230
- (335.202)
5.877.127 2.111.028
2020 2019

€ €
30.000.000 30.000.000
27.107.000 27.107.000
20.000.000 20.000.000
7.107.000 7.107.000
27.107.000 27.107.000

On 16 December 2019 a resolution was passed for the issue and allotment of €7.107.000 divided into

7.107.000 shares of €1 each to the sole Shareholder Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd,

16. Dividends

During the year the Company paid a final dividend for 2019 of €1.000.000 to its sole Shareholder
Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd (2019: final dividend for 2018 €900.000). The Company did not
pay an interim dividend for 2020, in light of the recommendations of EIOPA and the Insurance
Companies Control Service to refrain from payment of dividends as a result of the Covid-19

measures (2019: interim dividend for 2019 €1.354.776).
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17. General insurance contract liabilities

Provision for
outstaniding claims
reported

Provisions for claims
incurred but not
reported (IBNR) and
claims incurred but not
enough reported
(IBNER)

Total outstanding

claims

Provision for unearned

premiums

Provision for unexpired

risks reserve

Provision for claims
handling reserve

Total general insurance
contract liabilities

1 January
Incurred for the
year

Claims paid
during the year

2020 2019
Insurance Reinsurers’ Insurance  Reinsurers’
Contract share of Net Contract  share of Net
Liabilities liabilities liabilitles.  Liabilities liabilities liabilities
£ € 3 € € €
22.760.896 (3.893.371) 18.867.525 21.052.856 (3.921.524) 17.131.332
4.162.598 (507.395) 3.655.203 3.887.919 (428.450) 3.459.469
26.923 494 (4.400.766) 22.522.728 24.940.775 (4.349.974) 20.590.801
14.972.783 (2.179.623) 12.793.160 13.815.027 (1.931.767) 11.883.260
597.229 - 597229 578.117 - 578.117
42.493.506 {6.580.339) 35913.117 39.333.919 (6.281.741) 33.052.178
The provisions for outstanding claims reported by policyholders, claims incurred but not enough
reported (IBNER) and claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) are analysed as follows:
2020 2019
Insurance Reinsurers’ Insurance Reinsurers’
contract share of Net contract share of Net
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
€ € £ £ € €
24.940.775 (4.349.974) 20.590.801 23.583.581 (3.928.715) 19.654.866
16.426.245 (1.730.611) 14.695.634 18.979.686 (2.043.516) 16.936.170
(14.443.526) 1.679.819 (12.763.707) (17.622.492) 1.622.257 (16.000.235)
26.923.494 (4.400.766) 22.522.728 24.940.775 (4.349.974) 20.590.801

31 December
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17. General insurance contract liabilities (continued)

The provision for unearned premiums is analysed as follows:

2020 2019
Insurance Reinsurers’ Tusurance Reinsurers’
contract share of Nei contract share of Net
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
€ € € € £ '
I January 13.815.027 (1.931.767) 11.883.260 12.730.775 {1.743.657} 10.987.118
Premiums writien
during the year _ . . _
36.522.153 {6.709.976) 29.812.179 35.604.143 (6.541.434) 29.062.709
Premiums earned
for the year (35.364.399) 6.462.120 (28.902.279)  (34.519.821) 6.353.324 (28.166.567)
31 December 14.972.783 (2.179.627) 12.793.160 13.815.027 (£.931.767) 11.883.260
The provision for claims handling expense is analysed as follows:
2020 2019
Insurance Reinsurers’ Insurance Reinsurers’
contract share of Net contract Share of Net
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
€ € € € € €
I January 578.117 - 578.117 552.606 - 552.606
Provision for the
year 19.112 - 19.112 25.511 - 25.511
31 December 597229 - 597.229 578117 - 578.117

18. Related party transactions

The Company is controlled by Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd, incorporated in Jersey, which owns
100% of the Company’s shares. The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Barbara Foundation,

The ultimate parent entity (which is the same as the parent entity), which prepares the consolidated
financial statements of the largest body of undertakings of which the Company forms part as a
subsidiary undertaking, is Nest Investments (Holdings) Ltd, incorporated in Jersey, Channel Islands,
and its consolidated financial statements are available at the website www.nestco.org.
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18. Related party transactions (continued)

Balances due from/ (to) related parties as at 31 December 2020, were as follows:

Premiums receivable from related companies:
Common control entities
Premiums (refundable)/ receivable from directors
Receivables from related companies:
Parent entity
Common control entities
Reinsurance payables to related companies:
Common control entities
Payables to related companies:
Common control entities
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities:
Common control entities
Other creditors and accrued expenses:
Common control entity

2020
€

4.926
(4.043)

472.911
1.093.388

(91.534)
(445.081)
634.790

(5.608)

2019
€

9.682
(3.009)

463.601
900.937

(147.199)
(604.430)
509.905

(3.328)

Income/ (expenses) from related party transactions in the years ended 31 December, were as

follows:.

Gross premiums ceded to related company:
Common control entity

Reinsurance commission received from related
company: Commaon control entity

Claims recovered from related company:
Common control entity

Direct insurance premiums with directors

Direct insurance premiums with related companies:
Common control entities

Office space usage charged to related company:
Common control entity

Fees charged to related company: Parent entity

Expenses charged to related company:
Common Control entity

Expenses charged by related company:
Parent entity

Other services/ expenses/ computer software
charged by related companies:
Common Control entities

Purchase of investment properties from related
Companies {cost): Common control entities

2020
€

23.091
17.221

12.000

344

(2.130)

(451.189)

(420.000)

2019
€

(15.901)
2.385

4.301
19.937

48.263

7.000
5.000

(4.762)

(615.368)

(12.250.000)

The Company’s reinsurance {reaties are managed/ administered by a related company (common

control entity).
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18.

19.

20.

Related party transactions (continued)

The compensation of the Directors and key management personnel for the years ended 31

December was as follows:

2020 2019
€ €
Directors
Fees 151.400 131.400
Key management personnel
Salaries and other short term benefits 760.490 629.515
Social insurance costs and General Healthcare
System 49.463 44.363
Provident fund contributions 45.880 44.646
855.838 718.524

The key management personnel comprise of the Chief Executive Officer, the Financial Controller,
the Business Development Manager, the Operations Manager and the Claims Manager.

Other creditors and accrued expenses

2020 2019
€ €

Amounts due to reinsurers for premium reserve
retained 1.306.364 1.137.94]
Amounts payable to Group Insurance pools/ funds 139.133 152.602
Amounts due to claimants (38.147) (91,439
Motor Insurers Fund 223.711 212.129
Accrued expenses 1.246.002 1.074.025
Other provisions and reserves 251.437 181.730
Deposits for rent receivable 70.083 68.046
Rental income received in advance 101.520 -
Commissions payable to intermediaries 1.613.824 1.550.409
4.913.927 4.285.393

Other creditors represent balances that are repayable during the normal course of the Company’s
operations and are interest-free, with the exception of premium reserve retained which bears an

interest rate according to the terms of each treaty.

Non-current receivables

2020 2019

€ €

Amounts receivable from Tax Authorities 722.103 718.084
722.103 718.084

Non-current receivables represent amounts receivable from the Tax Authorities in relation to value
added tax on investment properties acquired. They are set off with amounts payable by the
Company to the Tax Authorities and are expected to be recovered within two years from the balance
sheet date. Non-current receivables are interest-free. None of the non-current receivables is either

past due or impaired and their fair value is equal to their nominal value.
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21.

22,

Fair values of financial instruments

As the majority of the financial assets and financial liabilities are either short-term or are carried
at fair value, management is of the opinion that the fair value of financial instruments is
approximately equal to their carrying amount at the reporting date — see Note 11 for disclosures in
relation to the investments of the Company that are measured at fair value. The carrying value of
loans and borrowings has also been assessed as approximating its fair value.

General insurance contract liabilities — terms and conditions, assumptions and
sensitivity of results -

The Company is engaged in general insurance business in respect of the business classes mentioned
in Note 3.

Risks under these policies usually cover a period of 12 months, with the exception of the travel
and goods in transit business classes that cover shorter periods and the business class “for
contractors insuring all risks that covers longer periods.

The labilities for outstanding claims arising from insurance contracts issued by the Company are
calculated based on estimates by loss adjusters and facts known at the reporting date. With time,
these estimates are reconsidered and any adjustments are recognised in the financial statements of
the period in which they arise.

The principal assumptions underlying the estimates for each claim are based on past experience
and market trends and they take into consideration claims handling costs, inflation and claim
numbers for each accident year. Also external factors that may affect the estimate of claims, such
as recent court rulings and the introduction of new legislation are taken into consideration.

The insurance contract liabilities are sensitive to changes in the above key assumptions. The
sensitivity of certain assumptions, such as the introduction of new legislation and the rulings of
certain court cases, is very difficult to be quantified. Furthermore, the delays that arise between the
occurrence of a claim and its subsequent notification and eventual settlement increase the
uncertainty over the cost of claims at the reporting date.

The table below demonstrates the development of claims estimates over the last five years for direct
business in Cyprus. In addition the reconciliation of these estimates with the total liability included
in the statement of financial position of the current year is demonstrated below:
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22, General insurance contract liabilities — terms and conditions, assumptions
and sensitivity of results (continued)
2020
2012 and )
prior-years 2013 2004 2015 2016 2017 2018 2009 2020 Total
¢ ¢ € ¢ € € € € € c
11899738 8265674 736041 10864902 11971067 14285959  16.894.154 17.900.174 13.834.594 114.682.303
1.111.433 368.013 509.391 857611 573.007 (145.130) 70.530 72.849 - 3.617.704-
381.769 255.493 202.952 253,881 {170.090) 185.355 453.409 - - 1.562.769
177.148 74.756 {23.183) 545 8.133 719.392 - - . 956.791
196.229 151.868 619.707 228.926 112.630 . - - - 1.309.300
216,937 179,173 128.221 584.057 - - - - - 1.308.388
13983254 9324917  10373.129 12780922 12494747 15045576 17418093 17.973.023 13.834.594 123.437.255
(13.523.167) _ (8.308.860) (8381.759)  (9.969.948)  (10.573.615) (12.379.666) (14676611}  (14.516.113) (8.346.620) {100.676.359)
460087 1216057 1.991.370 2.819.974 1921132 2.665.910 2741482 3456910 5487.974 22760896
(18.969)  (217.366) (780.737)  (1.229.224) (27.111) (717773 (232.541) {846.849) (468.797) (3.893.371)
441.118 598.691 1.210.633 1,590.750 1.894.021 2.594.133 2.508.941 2.610.061 5.019.177 18.867,525
2019
2011 and
rior years 1012 2073 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total
¢ c € e € € € € ¢ e
6.238.827  5.660.911 8295674 8736.041 10864502 11971067 14285959  16.894.154 17.500.174 100.847.709
613.078 498353 568.013 509.391 8575611 573.007 (145.130) 70.530 - 3.544.855
180.121 201.648 255.493 202.952 253.881 {170.090) 185.355. - - 1.109.360
123.448 53.700 74756 (23.183) 543 8.133 - - - 237.399
20.717 175.512 151.808 619.707 228,926 3 - - - 1.196.670
29.561 105.937 100,286 113.913 - . - - - 349.697
7205752 6696063 0446030  [0.158.82f 12205865 12382117 14326184 16964684 17.900.174 107.285.650
(7.134288) (6293709)  {8257.784) (7.990.554)  (9.241510)  (30419.799) (12.108.194) (14.007.051) (10.779.545)  (86.232.834)
71464 402354 1.188.246 2.168.267 2.963.955 1562.318 2.217.990 2.957.633 7.120.629 21.052.856
(4 {24741 (202.15%) (809.799)  (1.253.29%) (21.059) {73.402) (253.873)  (1.283.197) (3.921.524)
71.460 377512 986091 1358468 1,710,662 1.941.259 2.144.588 2.703.760 5.837432 17.131.332
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23.

Risk management

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, is- exposed to a variety of risks, the most
important of which are insurance risk, fluctuations in the prices of investments, foreign exchange
and interest rates, liquidity risk and credit risk..

These risks are identified, measured and monitored through various control mechanisms in order
to prevent undue risk concentrations.

Insurance Risk

The risk of an insurance policy occurs from the uncertainty of the amount and time of presentation
of the claim. Therefore the level of risk is determined by the frequency of such claims, by the
severity and their evolution from one period to the next.

For the general insurance industry, the major risks are the results of major catastrophic events such

as natural disasters. These risks vary depending on location, type and nature. The variability of

risks is mitigated by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts as a

more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by changes in any subset of the portfolio. The

exposure of the Company to insurance risks is also reduced by the following measures:

o Introduction of strict underwriting policies

*  Strict review of all claims that eccur

o Immediate assessment and processing of claims to minimise the possibility of negative
development in the long run, and

e  Use of effective reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic events.

An increase in the net estimated outstanding claims position and IBNR provision of 1% (2019:
1%) would decrease the profit before tax by €225.227 (2019: €205.908).

Marlket risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse movements in exchange rates, interest rates and
security prices.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises as a result of timing differences on the repricing of deposits and other
investments and interest-bearing liabilities, The Company closely monitors interest rate
movements and the repricing maturity structure of assets and liabilities which are subject to
changes in interest rates or have fixed rates.

Interest rate risk is measured using interest rate sensitivity gap analysis where the difference
between assets and liabilities repricing in each time band is calculated. This difference is then
multiplied with the assumed change in interest rates for the period from the repricing date until
twelve months from the date of the analysis, in order to find the annual impact on eamings of any
changes in interest rates for the next twelve months.

The table below indicates the effect-on the Company’s net interest income, over a one-year period,
from reasonably possible changes in the interest rates:
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23. Risk management (continued)

Changes in interest rates

2020
+0,5%
-0,5%
2019
+0,5%
- 0,5%

Currency risk

Effect on the Company’s
net interest income

€
91.867
(91.867)

115.206
(115.206)

The risk of changes in currency rates occurs when the Company has an open currency position in
any currency and is the risk of losses from adverse changes to the exchange rates. The table below
indicates the effect on the Company’s net profit and equity respectively, over a one-year period,
from reasonably possible changes in the EURO/USD exchange rates, as the Company’s most

significant exposure is in US Dollar (UUSD).
Changes in
EURCG/USD
exchange rates
2020

Effect on equity
€

Changes in
EURO/USD
exchange rates
2019

Effect on equity
€

+ 5%
-5%

130.934
(130.934)

Effect on profit

+ 3%
- 5%

€
65.831
(65.831)

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by currency

100.992
(100.992)

Effect on profit

€

4.798
(4.798)

The below table presents an analysis of the Company’s financial assets and Habilities by currency

as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

31 December 2020

Financial assets

Non-current receivables
Investments

Receivable from related companies
Premiums receivable

Other debtors and prepayments
Cash and bank balances

Total financial assets
Financial liahilities
Reinsurers current accotnts

Payables io related companies
Other creditors and accrued expenses

Total financial liabilities

Net position

Balances in

Balances in

United States Euro Total
Dollars

€ € €

- 722.103 722.103

1.302.060  19.099323 20.401.383

713.810 852.489 1.566.299

19.054 5.892.501 5.911.555

139,133 2.884.877 3.024.010

625,980 5.251.147 5.877.127

2.800.037 34.702.440  37.502.477

0.144 443.603 452.747

17.812 427.269 445,081

154.405 4.759.522 4.913.027

181.361 5.630.394 5.811.755

2.618.676 29.072.046 31.690.722
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23.

Risk management (continued)
Currency risk {continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities by currency

Balances in Balances in

United States Euro Total
31 December 2019 Dollars

€ € €

Financial assets
Non-current receivables - 718.084 718.084
Investments 1.923.882 17.492.014 19.415.896
Receivable from related companies 86.776 1.277.762 1.364.538
Premiums receivable - 5.778.105 5.778.105
Other debtors and prepayments 152.602  2.882.519  3.035.121
Cash and bank balances 82,282 2.363.948 2.446,230
Total financial assets 2.245.542 30,512,432  32.757.974
Financial liabilities
Reinsurers current accounts 14.914 408.698 423,612
Payables to related companies ‘ 15.484 588.946 604.430
Other creditors and accrued expenses 195.299 4.090.094 4.285.393
Total financial liabilities 225,697 5.087.738 5.313.435
Net position 2.019.845 25.424.694 27.444.539

The currency of the reinsurance treaties of the Company has changed from US Dollar to Euro from
1 July 2018. As at 31 December 2020 an amount of €1.577.301, which is included in the
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities, rélates to the reinsurers’ share of outstanding
claims for the old treaties in US Dollar (2019: €1.636.593).

Price risk

Price risk is the risk of adverse movements in the market prices -of equity shares and debt
instruments.

Equity securities and debt instruments price risk

The risk of loss from changes in the price of equity shares and debt instruments, arises when there
is an adverse change in the price of investments held by the Company.

The Company monitors this risk on a regular basis, in order to ensure it remains within acceptable
levels,

A change in the prices of equity securities and debt instruments classified as ‘available for sale’
affects equity (unless there is an impairment). The table below indicates how equity will be
affected from a change in the price of the equity securities held, as a result of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock exchange indices.
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23. Risk management (continued)

Price risk (continued)

2020

European Stock Exchanges
European Stock Exchanges
Government and Corporate Bond
markets

Government and corporate Bond
markets

2019

European Stock Exchanges
European Stock Exchanges
Government and Corporate Bond
markets

Government and corporate Bond
markets

Liguidity risk

Changes
to the Index
%

+30
-30
+30

+30
-30
+30

Effect on equity
€

584.549
(584.549)

5.459.410

(5.459.410)

298318
(298.318)

5.439.882

(5.439.882)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will suffer losses as a result of their inability to fully
meet payment obligations as and when they fall due. To manage this risk, the Company maintains
at all times cash at bank and other highly liquid assets in order to prevent undue risk concentrations.

 Analysis of financial liabilities by contractual maturity

Within one Cver one
year year Total
31 December 2020
€ ¢ €
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 42.297.632 195.874 42.493.506
Reinsurers current accounts 452.747 - 452.747
Payables to related companies 445.081 - 445.081
Other creditors. and accrued expenses 4.913.927 - 4.913.927
Total liabilities 48.109.387 195.874 48.305.261
Within one Over one
year year Total
3! December 2019
€ € €
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 39.228.378 105.541 39.333.919
Reinsurers current accounts 423.612 - 423.612
Payables to related companies 604.430 - 6(4.430
Other creditors and accrued expenses 4.285.393 - 4.285.393
Total liabilities 44.541.813 105.541 44.647.354
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23.

31 December 2020

Bonds (Note 11)
Deposits with banks
(Note 12)

Reinsurers share of
liabilities (INote 17)
Related Companies

(Note 18)

Premiums receivable

Total

31 December 2019

Bonds (Note 11}
Deposits with banks

(Note 12)

Reinsurers share of

liabilities (Note 17)

Related Companies

(Note 18)

Premiums receivable

Total

Risk management (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of failure by counterparties to perform under their contractual obligations.

The Company is transacting with a large number of clients, brokers and agents in order to achieve
adequate diversification of credit risk.

Credit risk is further reduced as the Company monitors credit exposures on a regular basis and,
when necessary, provides for any doubtful debts.

The tables below present the maximum credit risk exposure arising from the various financial
assets in accordance with their credit rating as determined by Moody’s:

Aal-Aa3 Al-A3 Baal- Bal-Ba3 B1-B3 Caal-C Urnrated Towal
Baa3
€ € € € € € £ €
1.039.311 4574490 8.369.033 3.740.839 288.621 382.174 - 18.394.468
- 2.180.179 - - 3.587.923 - 56.644 5.824.746
887.510 2.371.382 1.061.127 488.425 889.844 - 374.706 6.072.994
- - - - - - 1.566.299 1.566.299
- - - - - - 5.911.555 5.911.555
1.926.821 9.126.051 9.430.160 4.229264 4.766.388 382.174 7.909204 37.770.062
Aal-Aa3 AI-43  Baal-Baa3 Bal-Ba3 Bl-B3 Caal-C Unrated Tatal
€ £ 3 £ € € £ €
776.522 5.236.353 8.157.756 3.345.333 391.483 408.953 - 18.316.400
- 161.180 - - 1.656.367 - 339.635 2.157.182
757.886 2.765.412 1.074.684 - 891.393 - 363.916 5.853.291
- - - - - - 1.364.538 1.364.538
- - - - - - 5.778.103 5.778.105
1.534.408 8.162.945 6.232.440 3.345.333 2.930.243 408.953 7.846.194 . 33.469.516
Note (a)

The amounts classified under unrated banks represent deposits at local banks, which-are not

rated.
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23. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Company places a lot of emphasis on its counterparty default risk for reinsurance and the

following considerations are part of the reinsurance policy of the Company:

o Risk Distribution: Reinsurance is shared by a number of reinsurance companies in order to
diversify the counterparty default risk for reinsurance and reduce the concentration risk. As a
result there is no over-reliance on any one reinsurer over a predefined maximum level of

cxposure.

o  Financial Strength Rating: Reinsurers are selected according to minimum credit ratings from
S&P and AM Best, with adequate distribution over different credit rating bands. Reinsurers
are selected subject to a satisfactory review of their financial status, their reinsurance

arrangements and past performance.

As of 31 December 2020 the bonds, deposits with Banks, the receivables from related companies and the

reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities were neither past due nor impaired.

The premiums receivable that are less than six months past due are not considered impaired. These relate
to a number of independent agents/clients for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade recéivables is as follows:

2020 2019

€ €

Within credit period 4.337.224 4.136.705
Past due up to three months 1.063.671 1.060.196
Past due over three months but less than six months 234,786 281.881
Past due over six months 275.874 299.323
5.911.555 5.778.105

As of 31 December 2020, premiums receivable of €2.107.212 (2019: €1.616.683) were impaired and
provided for. The amount of the provision was €1.732.442 as of 31 December 2020 (2019: €1.306.188).
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to agents and corporate clients, which are in an
unexpectedly difficult economic situation. It was assessed that a portion of the receivables is expected to

be recovered.
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24.

25.

26.

Capital management

The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored by the Superintendent of Insurance (Ministry
of Finance} in order to ensure a minimum margin of solvency. The required minimum capital is
determined in order to ensure the minimum solvency margin. The Company also maintains
additional capital to support its business goal and to maximize its shareholder’s value.

As from 1 January 2016 a new regulatory framework, Solvency 1I, is in force in Cyprus. Solvency
II is the updated set of regulatory requirements for insurance companies which operate in the
European Union, which establishes a revised set of market consistent EU-wide capital requirements
and risk management standards.

The Company manages its capital base quarteriy, by assessing potential deficit between the current
level and the required capital to support its work. Adjustments to current levels of capital may take
place because of changes in economic conditions and the dangers that characterize the activities of
the Company. To maintain the required capital the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to the parent company.

The Company fully complies with the legal capital requirements set by the Superintendent of
Insurance, during the reported accounting periods i.e. the total eligible funds of the Company were
able to cover the minimum capital requirerent and the solvency capital requirement at all quarter
ends. The ratio of eligible own funds to solvency capital requirement as at 31 December 2020
amounts to 164% (2019: 174%).

Commitments

(i) Capital commitments

At 31 December 2020 the Company had no commitments for capital expenditure (2019: Nil).
(iiy Operating lease commitments

The Company leases various offices and parking places under cancellable operating lease
agreements. The Company is required to give a few months notice for the termination of these
agreements. The lease expenditure charged to profit or loss during the year is disclosed in Note 4.

Events after the balance sheet date

Depending on the duration of the Coronavirus disease {Covid-19) pandemic, and continued negative
impact or economic activity, the Company might experience some slowdown in the collection of
premiums receivable and some decrease in the fair value of investments in 2021, The exact impact
on the Company’s activities in 2021 and thereafter cannot be predicted.

In the year ending 31 December 2020 the Company increased the provision for doubtful debts by
€426.254 and recognised fair value decreases of €242.889 in available for sale investments, €46.688
in investments at fair value through profit or loss and €559.650 in investment properties.

The Company has taken a series of measures in order to protect the health and safety of its employees
and associates in order to ensure its business continuity. The management is closely monitoring the
situation in order to take all steps possible to mitigate any effects on the Company’s financial results.
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The following additional information is disclosed for direct business in Cyprus, in accordance with the
Accounting Orders issued under section 87(2) of the Laws on Insurance Services and other Related issues:

2020

Grass premiums written

Reinsurers’ share of

Gross premiums
“Writteén

Gross eamed
premiutms

Gross outstanding
Clzims

Gross claims.
Incurred

Gross claims
Charges

Gross operating

expenses -

other {han

commissions

Commissiens

Reinsurers” share of
insurance contracts
liabilities

2019

Giross premiums written

TReinsurers’ share of

Gross premiums
‘Written

Gross easned
premiums

Grass outstanding
Claims

Grass claims
Incurred

Gross claims
Charges

Gross operating

expenses —

other than

commissions

Commissions
Reinsurers’ share of

insurance contracts
lizbilities

Accident and
health class
&

3.637.157

523.508
5.632.077
801,131
2.321.270

11200011

1.435.055

637 398

262.352

Aceident amd
health class
£

6.522.100

543.606
6,619,383
1.199.872
4.405.344

5.590.732

1,103 4%6

692.830

224.502

Motor Vehicie
lighility class

€

14.993.330

283.852
14.568:494
13.283.182

6.998.391

7.030.856

2.835.109

3.294.634

1.073.702

Motor Vehicle
liability class
€

14595253

326088
14.181.732
13.315.647

%.505.83]

7.206.136

2305113

3.294.182

L152.007

AMotor
Yehicle, other
classes

£

5.186.501

671.850
4.984.439
2.515.720
2.661933

2.684.742

980,373

1.140.171

17317

Motor
Fehicie, other
classey

€

4.843.590

731237
4.649.164
2.538.529
2.748.126

2.695.159

T765.297

1.094.384

14307

Ships,
goods in
transit and
aircraft

liability class 1o propevly class
€ .

Fire amd
natural
Jorces and
ather damage

258.887 TO16.820
187.743 4,627 446
260169 §.767.979
39.732 3.848.576
54.63¢ 1.179.819
52.724 984,040
51.482 1.396.173
36.524 1.260.960
54.326 4.904368
Ships, Fire and
goods in netural
transit and forves and
aircrafi  other damage

liability class to property class

273.720

203,075
267.939

37817
114.043

95.052

46.511

37.896

65,873

6.565.940

4.409.678
6312108
3.652.797
1.590.728

1.369.844

1.107.818

1189.182

4.654.639

General
fiability
class

€

5.353.896

258.209
5.095.185
6422959

2.812252

578,153

1.058.861

T89.440

214.861

Gereral
liability
class

€

4,761 042

248573
4.461.010
4.188 860
1,198,961

641172

791.279

727417

186.228

guarantee

guaranies

Miscellaneous
Sinancial

loss,

fegal
expenses

and.
assistance
clasy

£ £

Credit
and

- 82.839

- 31.862
- 93.960

- 12,194
- (L.160)

- (7.000)

- 17.949

- 16,430

- 13.250

Miscellanecus
fincwcial

Toss,

legal

expenses

and
assisiance
class

€ £

Credit
and

- 90.10%

- 33.681
- 109919
- 6.354
- (1513)

- 15.000

- 15257

- 19.831

- 13,993

Total
2020
€

38.535.430

6.589.470
37.401 419
26.923.494
16.427.144

14.443.526

7.476.002

1.175.667

6.550.676

Toral
201
[

17.681.816

6.502.938

36.601.255

'24.935.870

18.961.520

17.505.005

4134

7.055.722

5272169

During the year 2020, 3.720 (2019: 4.409) claims were incurred relating to the motor vehicle liability

class, of which 1.468 (2019: 1.885) were outstanding at 31 December 2020, and their average cost was
€1.594 (2019: €1.163).
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